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Our Commitments

On a foundation of security and reliability, the ANA Group will
«Create attractive surroundings for customers
+Continue to be a famifiar presence

-Offer dreams and experiences to people around the world

ANA Group Safety Principles

Safety is our promise to the public and is the foundation of our business.
Safety is assured by an integrated management system and mutual respect.

Safety is enhanced through individual performance and dedication.

ANA Voted Airline of the Year
for 2007

Commended for Enhancing Quality and Improving

Results in a Severe Operating Environment

In January 2007, Air Transport World (ATW), the global aviation
industry's leading monthly magazine, voted ANA Airline of
the Year* for 2007. ATW cited ANA's introduction of innovative
services while maintaining safe operations and the Company’s An Airline Offering Dreams and Experiences

Mineo Yamamzig Frus Zrtard O ofr cu .o Cfrer

improved operating results, achieved despite severa! factors to People around the World

dampening air transporiation demand and changes in the ANA has been providing regular international service for 21
domestic competitive environment. The ANA Group Corporate  years, and it is deeply honored 1o receive this globally recog-
Philosophy states that we conduct business on a foundation nized award. We thank all our stakeholders for their continuous
of security and reliability for customers. We are delighted to support and assure them that this award will inspire us 1o strive
receive this award as a confirmation that we are successfully even harder to become an airline that offers dreams and experi-
implementing this principle. ences to people around the world.

* Aur Tegnsport World's Atl.ne of the Year award recognrzes excellence in the a rline and commergial aetospace indusires. Pubhshed s.nce 1961, 4 1 Tramg o izrdact c1rymanthly

magazine in the global aviation industry, and the Airline of the Year award, started in 1974, is one of the most prestigious industry awards.

ANA Group Corporate Philosophy L . B

p—
foidatent

Comporata oo
.

)
otita]

ANA L

|

desle g

oRon A

AN




Consatdated Fnancis! H ghlights

0]

A1 ppon Atways Co. Lta

Consolidated Financial Highlights

All Nippon Airways Co., Lid. and its consolidated subsiciiories'
Years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

US. dollars’

Yen (Millions) (Thousanus}
2007 2006 2005 2007
For the Year
OBEIATING FEVEMUES ... iiis e e reas e e ¥1,489,658  Y1,3068792  ¥1,292813 $12,618873
OPErating EXPENSES . ... ... i uee et enet s it 1,397,468 1,279,990 1,215,039 11,837,933
OPETatiNG INCOME. . .. <.t ie et 92,190 88,802 71774 780,940
BRI DA et 180,800 165,003 148,220 1,531,554
Income before income taxes and MiNority INErests. ...t 51,064 52433 45679 432,562
N o 1 = PP 32,658 26,722 26,570 276,645
Cash flows from operating activities . ... 158,714 128525 149,070 1,344,464
Cash flows from investing activities ... (128,298) (46,449) {165,247 (1,086,811}
Cash flows from Ainancing activities...........oon (100,897) {3,137} (51,600} (854,697)
Free cash low (JOS5) ..\ or ottt 30416 82076 {20177) 257654
AtYear-End
TOMAL ASSELS. - oo ¥1,602,091  ¥1566843  ¥1606613 $13,571,292
Interest-beaning deldt. ... v 749,446 846,317 942,256 6,348,547
Total shareholders' equity’ ... ..o 398,223 346,309 214,284 3,373,342
Yen 5. dollars’
Per Share Data
[T Ta we 11 - TSP PSPPSR ¥ 1677 ¥ 1564 ¥ 1726 $0.142
T BSEBLS . . v e e et e e e e e e e 20442 17789 12831 1.731
Cash diVIdEnds .. e 3.00 300 300 0.025
%
Management Indexes
Operating iNCoME Margin. ...t 6.2 65 60
RO e 6.0 57 52
ROE &, 8.8 95 148
EQUILY [0 249 208 133
Debt/equity ratio {HMESY ... ... o eeeee it 19 24 44
Operating Data
Domestic passenger services:
Available seat-km (millions). . ... 62,414 60,973 60,648
Revenue passenger-km (millions) ... 40,564 36712 38454
Number of passengers (thousands). ... 46,471 45474 44486
L0aa FACTON (98] e 65.0 65.1 634
International passenger services:
Available seat-km (milions). .. ... 26,607 25338 25,190
Revenue passenger-km (millions) ... 20145 18,769 16,191
Number of passengers (thousands) . .........c.c.co 4,552 4135 4116
Load fACION (3] .. e 75.7 ) 741 762
Cargo tons:
DOMESHIC (LONS) . .. ittt e e e 457,914 440,750 422397
INErnational (lONS) ..o v v 277,571 248,735 234417

Notes: 1. As of March 21, 2007, there were 95 consolidated subsidiaries and 25 equity-method subsidiaries and affiliates.
2 U, do'lar amounts in this repart are translated, for convenience only, a1 the rate of ¥11805=U551, the approximate exchange rate as of March 30, 2007.
3.EBITDA = operating income + depreciation and amartization
4, Total shareholders equity = shareholders' equity + valuation, ranstation adjustiments and gthers
5, ROA = (operating income + interest and dividend income) / simple average of total assets
6. ROE = et income / simple average of total shareholders equity
7. Figures are calculated using total shareholders’equity.




ANA Achieves Consecutive Years of Record-High Operating

Revenues and Income

* With strong passenger demand on both domestic and international routes, operating
revenues rose 8.8%, to a record high of ¥1,489.6 billion.

+ Price hedging and fuel management measures were used to counter higher jet fuel prices.
In addition, the ANA Group’s cost structure was reformed. These initiatives helped limit

the increase in operating expenses to ¥1,397.4 billion, a rise of 9.2%.

» Operating income increased 3.8%, to a record high of ¥92.1 billion.

+ Net income was up 22,2%, to ¥32.6 billion.

- Cash dividends were maintained at ¥3.00 per share.

Operating Revenues

Operating Income (Loss} /
Operating Income (Loss) Margin
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ANA at a Glance

Business Activities

Segment Revenues as
a Percentage of Operaling Revenues

Segment Revenues
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ANA and its six air transpertation
operators provide passenger, cargo,
and mail transportation services.
According to 1ATA (International Air
Transport Association) passenger
transport statistics, the ANA Group
ranks eighth among the world's
airlines. International Airport Utility
Co., Ltd,, and ANA Aircraft Mainte-
nance Co., Lid., provide a range of
services for customers at airports,
in addition to aircraft maintenance
services and airport handling ser-
vices. These services are also pro-
vided to domestic and international
airlines outside the ANA Group.

031 043~ 03 06 B

ANA operates 938 flights a day
on 130 routes. With 46.5 millicn
passengers a year, the Company
has a top market share of 48.4%.

In line with its key words “simple”
and "canvenient,” ANA is work-
ing 1o improve all aspects of its
service, from reservations to ticket
purchase, check-in, and boarding.

Airlines by Number of Revenue Passengers in 2006

Airline
American Airlines
Southwest Airlines
Delta Air Lines
United Airlines
Northwest Airlines

FBARFAFAANE

Lufthansa
Air France
All Nippon Airways

] Japan Airlines International
[(i_  China Southern Airlines
Source: IATA World Transport Statistics

_ (T passeraen)
Number of Passengers
99,835
96,277
73,584
69,265
55925
51,213
49,411
49,226
48,91
48,512

= 161%

(PE =08
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03 47 04 063 013

ANA operates 595 flights a week
on 38 routes and carries 4.6 million
passengers a year to cities around
the world. The Company is a
leading mernber of Star Alliance,
the world's largest airline alliance.
In conjunciion with other member
airlines, ANA provides high-guality
and extremely reliable air trans-
portation services. The Company is
focused on expanding its East Asia
network, ceniered on China.

ANA Group's Share of
Domestic Passengers in 2006

- Othess

Sources: Ministry of Land, 1nfrastiucture and
Transporg Annual Security Repots
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ANA uses cargo freighters and

available cargo space on pas-
senger aircraft for its cargo and
mait operations. With four cargo
freighters, the Company runs 8
domestic flights a day on 5 routes
and 108 international flights a week
on 20 routes, ANA'S aim is 1o tap
intc growing demand for air cargo
transportation, especially in Asia. To
that end, the Company is expand-
ing its network by increasing the
number of cargo freighters.

Velume of Internatienal Cargo

[housandtonsl
1,500

1310

1200

SRERERENE

03 M3 053 03 03
Source: Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and
Transport
Note: Volume of international cargo shipment
carried from Japan by Japanese airlines.

ANA Sales Co,, Ltd., markets airline
tickets, mainly for ANA flights, and
develops and sells travel products
using ANA Group air transportation
services and accommodations at
IHG ANA Hotels Group Japan hotels.
The principal products are ANA
Hallo Tour overseas travel packages
and ANA Sky Holiday demestic travel
packages.

Star Alliance Members

ANA/LT
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ANA formed a joint venture with

the InterContinental Hotels Group,
the world's largest hotel group

by number of rooms. [HG ANA
Hotels Group Japan operates and
franchises 30 hotels in Japan.

*On June 1, 2007, ANA transferred its hotel
business outside the Group. ANA is now
focusing on sirengthening hotel operating
functions.

bmi <o» Spanair

DT POLISH AIRLINES BO SWIss
AIR CANADA (& &) Lufthansa TAPPORTUGAL
é ] . .
AIR NEW ZEALAND Iy Scandinavian Airlines (gTHA]
[ ASIANA mmmzs‘i SINGAPORE AIRLINES **, GUNITED

Austrian 7

B SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS

3 05 AIRWAYS

In cther businesses, ANA's opera-
tions are principally related o air
transportation. Areas of business
include information and telecem-
munications, trading, retailing,
building maintenance, ground
transportation, and distribution.
In information and telecom-
munications, the ANA Group
promotes the development
and sales of air transport related

information terminals and software.

In distribution, the Group manages
cargo storage and deliveries, and
in trading it handles import/export
of air transport related materials as
well as retail and direct sales.

RIRCHINA ‘
[ﬁ LR EET

LAy T

HANGHA AifLMES

TURKISH AIILINESG ;

* Arines due to become
members of Star Alliance ’

ANA at a Glance
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Consecutive Years of Record-High Operating Revenues
and Income

In the fiscal year ended March 2007, ANA faced a challenging
operating environment, marked by continued increases in fuel
prices and the entry of a competitor airline on the Tokyo-
Sapporo route. Despite this, we succeeded in securing increased
numbers of high-yield passengers as internaticnal and domestic
passenger demand remained firm, and we strengthened
in-flight facilities and services and yield management. We also
implemented a fare revision and contained operating expenses
through hedge transactions to stabilize fluctuations in fuel costs
as well as by reforming our cost structure. As a result, operating
revenues were ¥1,489.6 billion and operating income was ¥92.1
billion, both consecutive record highs for the Company. We also
improved our inancial position by continuing to reduce interest-
bearing debt.

We introduced 21 new aircraft and decided on the sale of 9
Boeing 747-400s, thus making steady progress toward achieving
our geal of introducing highly fuel-efficient aircraft under the
ANA Group Mid-Term Corporate Strategy (April 2006 to March
2010},

Qutline of ANA Group Mid-Term Corporate Strategy [April 2006 to March 2010)

et me take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and
investors for their continued understanding and support of our
management strategy.

Strengthening Transportation Safety Systems and
Improving Fundamental Quality of Our Operations

One of the ANA Group safety principles states: “Safety is our
promise to the public and is the foundation of our business.”
Despite our steadfast commitment to upholding this orinciple,
recently there were two highly regrettable incidents. On

March 13, 2007, at Kochi Ryoma Airport, the landing gear of a
Bombardier DHG8-400 malfunctioned, and the aircraft made

a forced emergency landing. In addition, in May 27, 2007, our
Haneda Airport domestic passenger system experienced net-
work problems. This caused a substantial number of delays and
canceled flights. The ANA Group wishes to sincerely apologize to
its customers, shareholders, and investors,

We take these issues with the utmaost seriousnass, and we are
devoting all efforts to verifying our safety systems and prevent-
ing a recccurrence. As we prepare for cur next stage of growth,
we will review the basics of our business and strengthen the
Group's alr transportation safety systems as well as the funda-
mental quality of our operations.

Goal To become the number one airline in Asia in all areas of quality, customer satisfaction, and value creation

Numerical Objectives

Key Strategies

Fiscal year endiey March 2010

Operating Revenues. .............................. ¥1,550.0 billion
Operating Income I . ¥100.0billion
Operating Income Margin ................................. 6.5%

Internatienal Passenger Operations
—Increase profits through an expanded network

« Implement strategic network develepment

« Move to South Wing, Terminal 1, Narita Airport
—Asia hub airport for Star Alliance

Cargo and Mail Operations
—Expand scale of operations to strengthen foundation

« Add freighters
« Expand network based on freighters
« Expand distribution tie-ups

Fiscal year endng March 300

Netlncome............... ¥42.0 billion
ROA L B%=T%
Debt/tquityRatie........................... approximately 2 times

Domestic Passenger Operations
—Further increase unit revenues

- Enhance demand-supply matching
« Increase competitiveness

Improve Cost Structure
—Shift to corporate constitution that is less susceptible
to economic fluctuations

« Redue indirect fixed costs

—[rim by ¥10.0 billion by fiscal year ending March 2008
» Reduce direct costs

—Trim by ¥10.0 billion by fiscal year ending March 2010
- Implement Fleet Strategy




Mineo Yamamata, President and Chief Executive Officer

Continued Steady implementation of ANA Group Mid-Term Forecasts for Fiscal Year Ending March 2008 {Consclidated) Yer (Billrs ) §
Corporate Strategy (April 2006 to March 2010} in Fiscal Year 2008 007 2
Ending March 2008 Warch 31, {Forecast) {Actuel} 7
Operating Revenues........................ 1,490.0 1,489.6

In the fiscal year ending March 2008, we plan to steadily imple- Operating Expenses. .. ... 14110 1397.4 g
ment the ANA Group Mid-Term Corporate Strategy (April 2006 Operating Income. ... L 79.0 92.1 S
to March 2010). The operating environment is expected to Operating Income Margin (%) .............. 53 6.2 g
remain severe with continuing high fuel prices. However, with NetIncome. ... 640 326 %
transportation safety our first priority, we will remain focused Dividends (Yen... ..................e. o 5.00 300 g

: . . z

on the growth areas of international passenger operations and

international cargo and mail operations as we work to build a

corporate and financial structure that is resilient to changes in

the business environment. Forecasts by Segment for Fiscal Year Ending March 2008 Yen (Bilions)

In the fiscal year ending March 2008, air transportation 2008 2007

revenues are forecast 1o increase 5.19%. Taking into account the Makh 31, (Forecas?) facul)
transfer of the hotel business in June 2007, the forecast for con- Air Transportation Operating Revenues . ... 13120 12487
solidated operating revenues is ¥1,490.0 billion, approximately Operating Income ... ... 720 197
the same level as in the previous fiscal year. Operating income is Travel Services  Operating Revenues ... . 170 208.0
forecast to decrease 14.3%, to ¥79.0 billion, largely attributable Operating Income ... 29 19
to an increase in operating expenses stemming from higher Hotel Operations  Operating Revenues ........ - 6.6
fuel prices and the transfer of the hotel business. Net income is Opesating Incame ... - 2
forecast to increase 96.0%, to ¥64 0 billion, due t© gains on the Other Businesses  Operating Revenues ... 1930 1968

: : . . Operating Income ... 50 56
i transfer of the hotel business offsetting a loss related to aircraft. perating Incame o

| Nate: Before intercornpany eliminations
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ANA and the InterContinental Hotels Group will co-brand
hotels through a hotel cperating joint venture, IHG ANA Hotels
Group Japan. By transferring hotel-related shares and assets, we
are now close to realizing our goal of focusing management
resgurces on air transportation eperations under the ANA Group
Mid-Term Corparate Strategy (April 2006 to March 2010).

« International Passenger Operations - Strengthening
Measures to Tap High-Yield Business Demand

Since 2004, our marketing strategy has concentrated on high-

yleld passengers in the business class segment. In conjunction

with rigorous revenue management, this initiative has resulted

in significant improvements in the passenger yield* and

profitability.

In the fiscal year ending March 2008, we expect to see higher
yield contributing to increased revenues as we further expand
our route network. The increased flights that were introduced in
winter 2006 are now contributing to revenues throughout the
entire year.

To mark the 35th anniversary of the restoration of diplomatic
relations between China and Japan, we are planning several
charter flights between cities in Japan and China during the
period from August to November 2007, We are also making
preparations for the establishment of a new route between
Haneda and Shanghai Honggiao Airport, Further, in September
2007 we will launch the ANA BusinessJet service (business class
only) on the Narita~-Bombay route. In accordance with our policy
of matching aircraft supply to demand trends, we will introduce
the highly fuel-efficient Boeing 777-300ER on the Narita—London
and Narita-5an Francisco routes, thus targeting even higher
profitability.

* Passenger yield = passenger operating revenues / revenue passenger-km (RPK)

- Cargo and Mail Operations — Reinforcing Business through
Route Netwark Expansion
in the fiscal year ended March 2007, growth was sluggish in the
international air cargo market. However, we continued to expand
our route network, introducing our fourth carge freighter and
starting the Centrair-Chicago route. As a result, international
cargo revenues increased 12.39% from the previous fiscal year.
Total carge and mail revenues were up 8.7% year on year, to
¥105.1 billion, the first time they have exceeded the ¥100 billion
level.

In the fAscal year ending March 2008, we will consign cargo
cperations to ABX Air, Inc., of the United States, and will effec-
tively have six freighters at our disposal. Through measures
like these, our focus will continue to be network expansion an
Asia {centered on China)-Japan/North America routes. We will

provide weekday daily services on high-demand routes to meet
customer needs.

In July 2007, we announced our future carge hub concept for
Okinawa. Taking advantage of its close position tc China and the
rest of Asia, we are seeking further growth in our cargc opera-
tions.

» Domestic Passenger Operations - Enhanced
Competitiveness Leads to Increased Unit Revenues
In domestic passenger operations during the year under review,
we have been pursuing a strategy of improving unit revenues™
by matching supply to demand trends through the introduction
of narrow-baody aircraft and raising transportation turnover while
maintaining available seat-km (ASK}, As a result, unit revenues
increased 3.5% during the year under review from the previous
year.

As the expansion of Haneda Airport will result in intensified
competition, we intend to continue to optimize our network
and enhance profitability in the fiscal year ending March 2008.
We enterad into a code-sharing agreement with Starflyer on the
Tokyo-Kitakyushu route in June 2007 Working to meet pas-
senger demand, we strengthened our sales with the promotion
of the Tabi-Wari discount fare, which satisfies a wide variety of
customer needs. We also intensively promoted our 5KiP service,
which we introduced in 2006, as part of our strategy to attract
new customers to ANA. Further, we increased the number of
our highly-acclaimed Super Seat Premium seats in order to offer
customers high-quality services clearly differentiated from our
competitors.

* Unit revenues = passenger operating revenues / available seat-km (ASK)

Stepped-up Introduction of Fuel-Efficient,
Wide-Body Aircraft

With a long-terrm prospect of high fuel prices, we are promot-
ing the introduction of new highly economical, fuel-efficient
aircraft. This Is an acceleration of our Fleet Strategy, implernented
from the fiscal year ended March 2004, In the fiscal year ended
March 2007, we decided on the sale of nine Boeing 747-400s
and piaced additional orders for four Boeing 777-300ERs. We
are focusing on the stepped-up introguction of the wide-body
Boeing 777-300ER, which has particularly high fuel efficiency on
long-haul routes. In these ways, we are enhancing profitability in
preparation for the completion of the Haneda Airport expansion
project,

We are also making intensive preparations for the May 2008
introduction of the new medium-sized Boeing 787, which will be
a key aircraft in the ANA Group's ongoing Fleet Strategy.




Progress in Improving Financial Position
and Planned Dividend Increase

The transfer of the hotel business yielded proceeds of ¥281.3
biliion, a figure in excess of our original projections. We will use
these funds to improve the competitiveness of our air trans-
portation operations and 1o strengthen our financial position.
At the end of the fiscal year ending March 2008, we projeci a
debt/equity ratio® of about 2 times, very close to the target set
in the ANA Group Mid-Term Corporate Strategy (April 2006 10
March 2010). Therefore, our efforts to improve the balance sheet
in recent years will have achieved a measure of success.

ANA gives a high priorily to providing a return o shareholders,
and, on the assumption that ANA meets its forecasts in the cur-
rent fiscal year, the Company plans 1o raise the annual dividend
from ¥3.00 per share 10 ¥5.00 per share for the fiscal year ending
March 2008,

" Includes off-balance lease obligations

Becoming Asia’s Number One Airline, Targeting
Expansion of Haneda Airport and Beyond

Work has begun on the constructicn of the fourth runway at
Haneda Airport, due for completion in October 2010, The Japa-
nese government has outlined Japan's Asian Gateway Initiative,
which has prompted lively debate on the positioning of Haneda
Airport in terms of internationalization and further deregulation.
Japan’s aviation industry is clearly moving toward a big bang
with the completion of the Haneda Airport expansion. Moreover,
the trend in the global aviaticn industry is toward liberalization,
To succeed in this environment, the ANA Group aims to become
the airfine that truly represents Asia, delivering on quality, cus-
tomer satisfaction, and value creaiion.

The ANA Group Mid-Term Corporate Strategy (April 2006
to March 2010} is on track. We will continue in our efforts o
increase profitability and achieve our target of ¥100.0 illion in
operating income in the fiscal year ending March 2010,

July 2007

P Yoo ™

Mineo Yamamoto
President and Chief Fxecutive Officer

Strengthening Safety Measures

- Safety Measures for Bombardier Aircraft

On March 13, 2007, an ANA Bombardier DHC-8-400 was
forced to land at Kochi Ryoma Airport without deploying
its nose landing gear. After this, based on a technical
circular directive issued by Japan's Civil Aviation Bureay,
an emargency inspection was carried oui on the nose
landling gear of all of ANA's Bombardier aircraft. As an
additional precautionary measure, daily visual and opera-
tional checks were made on the operation of the housing
doar for both the nose and main landing gear as well as
the bolts on the mechanism of the nose landing gear. To
further confirm the safety of the aircraft, certain key items
from ANA'S heavy maintenance check (key components
related to landing gear and control devices) were subject
to special inspection on all Bombardier aircraft,

Further, Borbardier Inc.'s top managernent expressed
its desire to strengthen the company’s engineering
SUPPOTt systems in Japan such that a meeting was
convened between representatives from Japanese
airlines and Bombardier engineering specialists, and a
supply base will be established at Narita Airport. Also,
with the support of a Bormbardier engineering team,
the aircraft that displayed the malfunction has been
thoroughty inspected and repaired. We are devoting
our best efforts to ensuring safety.

- Establishment of ANA Group
Safety Education Center

On January 1, 2007, the ANA Group established the
Safety Education Center. The center allows ANA Group
employees to draw lessons from past aviation accidents
and incidents, to rzise their awareness about the
importance of air transportation safety, and 1o consider
methads to achieve the safest level of transportation
possible. Training programs for Group employees began
in February.

ANA Group Safety Education Certer

To Cur Shawbo'ders |
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Corporate Governance

Fundamental Approach to Corporate Governance

ANA believes that it is essential to instituie a system
of corporate governance that promates operational
{management) transparency and accountability to
stakeholders in order 1o cantinue enhancing ANA'S
enterprise value.

. riemal Audit
implementation of Corporate Governance Bivisian

Initiatives

ANA's Corporate Governance Status, Including
Organizational Structure for Decision Making,
Execution, and Management Oversight

. Governing Bodies of the Company
ANA's management system comprises 16 directors, 5
corporate auditors, and 35 corporate executive officers
(including those who are both directors and corporate
exacutive officers). For important administrative issues,
discussions are held and decisions are made by the
Management Committee, which is chaired by the
president and includes the 13 directors who are also
corporate executive officers, 2 corporate auditors, and
other corporate executive officers. Under the Corpora-
tion Law of Japan, certain issues must be considered
by the board of directors, which makes the final decision on such
issues.

The board of directors is led by the chairman. In addition to the
directors, 2 of whom are external directors, the board includes
5 auditors, 3 of whom are externa! auditors. The board of direc-
tors met 13 times in the fiscal year ended March 2007, including
extraordinary meetings.

. Enhancement of Internal Control System

and Risk Management System
In April 2003, ANA founded its internal control system, which
comprises the Risk Management Committee, the Compliance
Committee, and the Internat Audit Division. In addition, the
Finance & Accounting Division is considering the establishment
of an internal cantrol systemn for financial disclosure in accordance
with the Financial Product Trading Law.

The Risk Management Section of the C5R Promotion Division,
which was established in April 2007, has been assigned as the
Risk Management Committee's secretariat. The Risk Management
Commitiee works with Risk Management Leaders assigned to
major departments and affiliated companies 1o facilitate risk
managernent activities. Risk Management Leaders, who are also
Compliance Leaders and Information Security Leaders, acl as
promulgators of risk management. The Risk Management Commit-
tee has also established subcommittees with expertise in specific
risks, such as the Air Transportation Safety / Crisis Management
Subcommittee and the Information Security Subcompmitiee. n
addition, in the event of the accurrence of certain risks, termporary
subcommittees will e formed 10 take action in a cross-sectional
manner.

. Internal Audits, Audits by Corporate Auditors,

and Account Audits
Internal audits are performed by the Internal Audit Division, which
carries out operational audits and accounting audits for ANA and
Group companies, Each year, more than 60 audits are performed

Internal Control System and Risk Management System

Board of Directors
!

Presidem & (EQ
‘ : Internzl Control Syster

Risk Management (ommuize (cmphance (ommilee

R ok Nznagemer!
Subrommitiee

R Transpridnen
bty £ (e Namgrment

(h ef Risk Managerrent Officer Chief Comphance Officer

{Executve Vice President, {Executive Vice President,
(SR Promgtion} (SR Promasign)
| |
Pisk Management & (crpiance Rist Managemert & Comphance
{hetut e CHfice) b e LTl
|

Ris}. Management Leaders Cormptange Leaders

Risk Management System

on Company offices or Group companies, with approximately
180 subjects being audited once every ihiree years. Information
on important issues that emerge from the audits is reporied 10
the independent auditors via the Finance & Accounting Division.
Auditing results are reported 1o the president each month, and
important iterns are reported Lo the corporate auditors guarterly.

Audits by corporate auditors are perfarmed by the five corpo-
rate auditors. Each corporate auditor conducis audits of operations
at each office and audits of subsidiaries and reports the results to
the board of corporate auditors and to the representative direc-
tors. The auditors share information and opinions with the Internal
Audit Division and the independent auditors on a quarterly basis
and work to enhance auditing.

As for account auditing, Frnst & Young ShinNibon audited ihe
Company, its work sites, and Group companies in accordance with
the Corporation Law and the Securities and Exchange Law of
Japan. Auditing results were reporied 1o ANAS managerment and
10 the board of corporate auditors.

Independent Auditors Engaged in Audits

Hame of Accountant _ Name of Audit Corporation
! L Kazo Tanimura ;
Engagement Fartner Masatsugu Hamada 7 [ins1 & Young ShinNifion

| | Maswio ;

Notes: 1. Al the independent audizors nave less than seven coniinuous auditing years.
Therelore, figures for continuous auditing years have been omitted.
7 The independent auditers have voluntarily adopted a sysiem whereby their executive
oificers cease from ANA account auditing after a spacihed period.

There are eight Certified Public Accountants, five Junior Accoun-
tants, and one other staff member assisting with audit services.

Personal Relationships, Business Relationships, and Other
interests between the Company and External Directors

or Auditors

The Campany has two external directors: Mr. Misac Kimura and Mr.




Shosuke Mori. Nagoya Railroad Co., Lid,, where Mr. Kimura serves
as chairman and representative director, is the largest shareholder
of ANA, holding 3.69% of the total issued stock, In addition, ANA
and Nagoya Railroad Co., Ltd., have dealings concermning the
consignment of flight ticket sales business. There is no particular
business relationship between ANA and the Kansai Electric Power
Co, Inc, where Mr. Mori serves as president and representative
director.

The three external auditors are Mr. Kunitaka Kajita (standing
corporate auditor), Mr. Shinge Matsuo, and Mr. Hideo Minamiyama.
There are no particular business relationships between ANA and
Mr. Kajita, Mr. Matsuo, or Mr. Minamivama or between ANA and
Kyushu Electric Power Co., Inc, where Mr. Matsuo serves as presi-
dent and representative director, or Hokkaido Eleciric Power Ca,
inc., where Mr, Minamiyama serves as chairman and representative
directors.

Corporate Governance Activities in the Fiscal Year

Ended March 2007

- Advisory Board

In order to hear frank and open opinions and advice about the
Group's management, ANA has established the Advisory Board,
which consists of seven members with a range of backgrounds.
The board met four times during the fiscal year ended March 2007,

» Enhancing the Internal Control System

In the fiscal year under review, ANA made the foliowing efforts to
reinforce its internal control system, which is an important part of
the infrastructure supporting effective corporate governance,

<Risk Management Function>

We worked to reinforce the effectiveness of our operational con-
tinuance plan, which was formutated in response to the risk of a
large earthquake in the Kanto region, where our management
resources are concentrated, or a Tokai earthquake. In particular,
we formulated individual operational continuance plans at each
department level.

Also, we strengthened the efficiency of our safety confirma-
tion system by conducting Companywide operational training
sessions. In information security, we trained employees using
e-learning and reinforced our information security systems,
including those for the protection of individual customer
information.

<Compliance Function>

We adopted a policy of reexamining our compliance function.
Under this policy, we evaluated the extent to which compli-
ance penetrates the Company and worked 1o strengthen it. In
addition, we increased the number of compliance leaders and
appointed sub-leaders. In accordance with the provisions of
the Whistleblower Protection Act of April 2006, we established
requlations cencerning the handling of internal reporting and
disseminated them throughout the ANA Group and to our
business partners. We rigorously enforced codes of conduct
far temporary workers, improved our systems for security trade
control, appropriately adjusted our contract and tempaorary work
systems, and strictly managed working hours.

<C5R Activities>
The CSR Promotion Division was established in April 2007 1o

coordinate CSR activities throughout the entire ANA Group.
Internal control, environment-related, and social responsibility
functions are now integrated within the CSR Promotion Division.
Headed by the executive respansibie for CSR, the division will
work ta strengthen the Company's C5R system.

<internal Auditing Function>

In the fiscal year ended March 2007, the Internal Audit Civision
implemented audits at approximately 70 offices and Group
companies. Areas covered in the audits included accounting
practices, quality control systems, cornpliance with regulations,
and the protection of personal information.

Limited Liability Agreements

ANA has entered into agreements with external directors and
external auditors whereby their liability for actions set forthiin
Article 423, paragraph 1 of the Corporation Law is limited to the
amount provided for in Article 427, paragraph 1 of the Corporation
Law.

Number of Directors
The Company’s Articles of Incorporation stipulate that ANA shall
have no more than 20 directors.

Requirements for Election of Directors

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation stipulate that directors
shall be elected by the majority voting rights of a meeting of
shareholders, where the shareholders present at the meeting are
holding one-third er mare of the veting rights of all shareholders.

Special Resclutions at General Meeting of Shareholders

With regard o the passing of special resclutions at the General
Meeting of Shareholders, as stipulated in Article 309 of the
Corporation Law, the Company's Articles of Incarporation were
amended to state that the presence of shareholders representing
not less than one-third of voting rights is required for a quorum,
and the affirmative votes of two-thirds of the voting rights present
are required to pass the special resolution. By relaxing the quorum
requirements for a special resolution, ANA aims to promote
smoather management of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Board Members’ Remuneration and Audit Fees
in the Fiscal Year Ended March 2007

Board Members’ Remuneration
ANA pald the following remuneration 1o directors and auditors.

Remuneration paid to directors. ............ ¥420 million
{of which ¥6 million paid to external directors)

Remuneration paid to auditors.............. ¥81 million
(of which ¥33 million paid to external auditors)

Totah oo ¥501 million

Audit Fees

ANA paid the following fees to Ernst & Young ShinNihen.

Fees in accordance with services described
in Clause 1, Article 2 of

the Certified Public Accountant Law, ., .. .. ¥59 million
Fees based on services other than above ... ¥62 million
Total .. ¥122 million

* The above audii fees include the audit fees descnbed 1n the Corporation Law of Japan
and the Securities and Cxchange Law of Japan.
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Manugerment Merer bers and Group Crganization

Management Members and Group Organization

{As of June 25, 2007)

Board of Directors

Front row, fram left, K. Kubo, Y, Ohashi, M. Yamamoto, 5. Omae, and S. lto
Back row, from Jefi, K. Okada, M. Marimoto, 5. Nagase, I. Hidema, and A. Nomoto

Corporate Auditors

9

)

Afl N:ppon Airways Co, Lid.

Yoji Chashi
Chairman of the Board

Mineo Yamamoto

President & Chief Executive Officer
Chairman of the Management Comritiee,
Chief of Safety Fromotion Committee,
Chief of Risk Managernent Comenittee,

Suguru Omae

Senior Executive Vice President

Operations & Alrport Services,

Corporate Satety and Audit,

Chairman of Safety Promorian Commitice

Kaoshichiro Kubo

Senior Executive Vice President
Executive Office Personnel,

Human Resource University Preparaiory
Griice, Employee Refations,

Business Suppori

Shinichiro Ito

Senior Executive Vice President
Marketing & Sales, C5 Promotion,
Chairman of CS Promation Committee

Shin Nagase

Executive Vice President

General Administrotion, Public Retations,
CSR Promotian,

Chairrman of CSR Prornotion Cornmitiee,
Chairrman of Environmeni Comemitiee,
Chairman of Risk Management Committee,
Chairman of Compliance Commitiee

Mitsuo Morimoto
Executive Vice President
Fiight Operations

Tomehiro Hidema

Executive Vice President

Investor Relations, Group Business
Development, Finance & Accounting,
Purchasing, Facilities

Keisuke Okada

Executive Vice President

International & Requigtory Affairs,
Alfiance & imternational Affairs,
information Technofogy Services,
Chairman of Information Technology
Strategy

Akinori Nomoto
Executive Vice President
Cargo Marketing & Services

Hiroyuki lto
Executive Vice Presictent
Lngineering & Maintenance

Junko Yamauchi
Executive Vice President
Inflight Services

Qsamu Shincbe
Executive Vice President
Corporaie Planning, 8787 taunch Project

Katsumi Nakamura

Executive Vice President

Operations & Airport Services,
Chairman of Operations Committee

Misao Kimura

External Direcior

Chairman and Representative Direcior
of Nagova Railroad Co., Lid.

Shosuke Mori

External Direcior

Presiden; and Represeniative Director
of the Kansai Efectric Power {o., Inc.

Kunitaka Kajita
Corporare Auditor

Koichiro Ono
Corporaie Auditor

Kaji Ohno
Corporare Auditor

Shingo Matsuo

External Corporate Auditor

President and Represeniotive Director
of Kyushu Eleciric Power Co., Inc.

Hideo Minamiyama

External Carporate Auditor

Chairman and Represeniative Direcior
of Hokkaido Electric Power Co., inc.




Corporate Executive Officers

Minoru Aimeno
Senfor Vice President
Sales, President of ANA Sales Co, tid,

Katsuyori Kikuchi
Senior Vice President
General Manager, Tokyo Sales Office

Shinsuke Maki
Senjor Vice President

Engineering & Maintenance

QOsamu Asakawa

Kunio Yamazaki
Servior Vice President
General Manager, China

Yusuke Jikumaru
Senior Vice President
Flight Operations

Shigeyuki Takemura

Senior Vice President
Goverment & Industriol Affairs

Akihiko Nakamura

Mitsuhiko Ota
Senior Vice President
General Manager, Takyo Airport

Toru Sato
Senior Vice President
Infarmation Technology Services

Yoshinori Maruyama
Senidor Vice President

General Manager, Fukuoka Sales Office

Kiyoshi Tonomoto

Eiji Kanazawa
Senjor Wee President
Finance & Accounting

Ken Nishimura
Servor Vice President
General Manager, Osaka Sales Office

Katsumi Kobayashi
Senior Vice President

General Manager, Narita Afrport

Shinya Katanozaki

Serior Yice President Senior Vice President Senior Vice President Senior Vice President
President of Air Mippon Co., Ltd. Marketing & Sales Cargo Marketing & Services Personnel
Atsuro Takahashi Tsukasa Shibata lwaya Motomu Akira Okada

Senior Vice President
General Manager, Sappora Sales Office

Senior Vice President

General Manager, Nagoya Sales Office

Senior Vice President
Operations & Airport Services,

Senior Vice President
Corporare Planning

Operations Development ——

Shinichi Inoue Kenji Maruyama 5

Senior Vice President Senicr Yice President Yasuo Goto g

FHighr Operations General Manager, Osaka Ajrport Seniar Vice Presicient )

CSR Promotion 2

3
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: ' : Corporate Auditors : . . Z

D Corporate Auditors Office —- Board of Corporate Auditors - {Jperations Committee

:  Board of Directors r— (S Promotion Committee

Chairman
Presicent & (FQ

k (SR Promotion Commitiee

: Internal Audit - Safety Promotion Committee

Senior Executive Vice President
Environment Committee
IT Strategy & Governance Committee

: r— Risk Management Committee

All Nippon Airways Co, Ltd.

*—  (Compliance Committee

Headquarters Department

J

[ — Operations & Airpert Services
| I | |
Marketing & Sales Carge Marketing & Services Flight Operations Enginesring & Maintenance Inflight Services
\
Domestic Branches Domestic Airport Branches
QOverseas Branches Domestic Airport Offices

Overseas Airpert Offices

e i o
ANA Hotel Tokyo Co., Ltd.
Okinawa ANA Resort (o, Lid.

:Lﬁliilir 3&1?11;1@

Afl Nippon Alrways Trading Co., Ltd.

ANA Information Systems Planning
(o., Ltd.

Sky Building Service Co., Ltd.

ANA Logistic Service Co., Lid.

ANA Business Crzate Co., Ltd.

AR |
International Airpert Utility Co., Ltd.

ANA Catering Service Co., L td.

New Tokyo Airport Service (o., Ltd.

ANA Aircraft Maintenance Co., Ltd.

ANA GROUP tation:, i
Subsidiaries: 128 Air Kippon (o, Lid,
Affiliates: 44 Air Nippon Network Co., Ltd.

Air Japan Co,, Ltd.

Air Central {o., Ltd.

Air Next Co, Ltd.

ANA & JP Express Co., Ltd.

ANA Sales Co, Ltd.

\ (hs of Marca 31, 2007)

Note: ANA transferred its hotel business outside the Group in June 2007,
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Special Feature

Fleet Strategy:

A Key Part of Our Mission to Become

Asia’s Number One Airline

I n air transportation operations, the most important role is
played by the aircraft that make up the airline’s fleet. The
ANA Group's fleet currently comprises 211 aircraft. To succeed
in a tough competitive environment, we are implementing
the earliest possible renewal of aircraft that will excel in

terms of safety, fuel efficiency, economy, and comfort. The
Company’s Fleet Strategy is therefore a crucial component

of the ANA Group Mid-Term Corpaorate Strategy (April 2006

to March 2010), which aims to make ANA Asia’s number one
airline.

"~ ANA’s Fleet Strategy - Providing the Base
for Heightened Competitiveness

» Aircraft Selection - Most Important Management Decision
Aircraft can be in service for more than 10 years and are thus a
vital asset for airlines. The manufacturer catalog prices of aircraft
<an run from about 30 million dollars to about 3G0 million
dollars. In selecting aircraft and determining fleet composition,
an airline is making decisicns that can significantly influence its
future,

The selection of aircraft is a highly complex process, depen-
dent on meny factors. First, a number of external requirements
come into play based on the mid-term network strategy: aircraft
fuel efficiency and flight performance; airpart conditions, such
as runway length and flight support facilities; and environmental
considerations, including noise control. Second, the selection
process must take into account internal factors: persennel and
training plans for flight crews, cabin attendants, and engineers;
maintenance and training facility plans; and

supply plans for equipment and components, Fleet Upgrade Plan
including engines. In addition, a comfortable ' )

cabin environment, which motivates passengers

to choose ANA regularly as their airline, is also a Regional

key consideration.

Narrow-Body

Medium-Sized

Wide-Body

Fleet Upgrade Strategy

| Sivtleifing o Rucl-Senii Flasd -
2
| et (o Sevitags impweved) Sidianey)

ANA has a very wide route network that ranges from short
domestic routes to leng-haul international routes, and this makes
it difficult for one aircraft type to fulfill all the requirements. Each
aircraft type has individual performance characteristics. Based on
our projections of future route development and the business
environment, we pursue the optimal fleet composition.

+ ANA Establishes Three-Principle Strategy

for Airport Expansion
ANA is implementing its Fleet Strategy in line with the two
major airport expansion projects under way at Haneda Airport
and Narita Airport. These projects will change the market, and’
ANA intends to link this 1o an opportunity for growth. The Fleet
Strategy has three principles: downgauging, switching to fuel-
saving fleets, and integrating. As the number of landing and
departure slots expands, we will increase the number of aircraft

Totaloffzn
aircraft
et BHC, F50 DHC etc.
—————————————— DHCFS® ...
4320-200 A320-200 B737-700, etc.
............ . B737-400/500
B737-400/500 B737-700
B737-700 B
B767-300/ER B787-8
““““““ A321-100 B767-300/ER B787-8/3, etc.
B767F BI67F
B747-400 e
““““““““ B777-300/ER B777-300/ER
B777-200/ER TR B777, et
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while beosting the ratio of smaller aircraft. At the same time,

we will introduce new fuel-efficient aircraft, Jet aircraft will be
standardized to three types - cne each of wide-body, medium-
sized, and narrow-body. These three principles will strengthen
our cost competitiveness and create an operational base resilient
1o changes in the business environment, such as sudden fluctua-
tions in demand.

Characteristics of Aircraft — Aircraft Size and Flight Range

Aircraft Prices

Aircraft Price 52 ~
B777-300/-30CER . ......... . ..... 210.0 - 264.5
B777-200/-20CER ........... ..... 178.0 - 2125
B747-400/-400D. . . ......... ...... 2160 — 475
B787-8............... 1480 - 1575
B787-3.. ... 138.0 - 1430
B767-300 Freighter ............... 143.0 - 1550
B767-300ER........ ... ... 1330 - 1490
A2V . 800 ~ 850
A320...... 650 - 700
B737-700..... ... 540 - 640
DHC-8-400 ... ............... 250 - 300

Source: Catalogue Price Lists fiorm Manufactures

- Enhanced Competitiveness from Smaller Aircraft

and Higher Flight Frequencies
With the expansion of Haneda and Narita airports, the number
of landing and departure slots will increase, and zirlines will have
an opportunity to increase flight frequencies. The introduction
of smaller aircraft enables airlines to enhance competitiveness
by creating greater convenience due to increased flights while
guarding against a lowering of the load factor, which comes
from operational expansion. In addition, flight operations can be

! N B777-300 Tirumre=s B777-300ER TS
g‘:ﬂ; : B777-2100 T BT7T-I00ER T
B7-4000 B, B747-400 S~
! i. : ) . B787-) Ty B787-8 Ty,
Mediurn- : : ; B767-300 Mo B767-300R S,
Sized - : :
. A2l B,
N . A320-200 T2, T A30-200 T,
Narrow- . . . B737-700 Iy, B737-700(R T,
Body : TR S —
B737-400 T —y,
P Fa ‘m\-._'—-._h
Arcatt - OHCaa00 Bonme, ‘
* DHC-8-300 T — Dedicated Air.rafi *3 [rtemstional Routes
0 500 1,000 2000 1,000 4000 5,000 10023 15,000

Haneda—0kinawa
Narita=Seoul
Narita-Shanghai

Narita-Incheon
Haneda-Sapporo
Haneda—Fukuoka
Haneda-Okayama
Haneda-Hiroshima

Osaka-Fukuoka
Osaka-Niigata
Sapporo-Hakodate
Sapporo-Memanbetsu
Hagoya-Fukushima
Nagoya-Yonago

Narita-Beijing

Narita—Taipei
Kansai-Guam

Narita-Hong Kong

Narita—New York
Narita-Washington, DS,
Narita—Chicago
Narita-London
Narita-Paris
Narita~Frankfurt

Narita—Bangkok Harita-Singapore

Narita-Ho ChiMinhGity ~ Narita-Bombay
Narita-S5an Francisco
Narita-Los Angeles

Flight Range {km)
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adjusted flexibly to demand and can respond precisely to differ-

ent levels of demand at different times. ANA will steadily increase

the ratio of medium-sized and narrow-body aircraft and thereby
heighten its competitiveness against rival airlines and other
forms of transportation, such as the Shinkansen bullet train.

« Fuel-Efficient Aircraft to Counter Rise in Fuel Costs
The Fleet Strategy’s introduction of cutting-edge new aircraft
offers the prospect of an improvement in fuel efficiency, and we

expect reductions of between 12% and 18% in fuel consumption
per seat on standard domestic routes.

When the Boeing 747-400 was replaced by the Boeing
777-30CER on the Narita—New York route in May 2005, fuel

consumption decreased 24% per flight. I acidition, our FAM (Fleet

Assignment Model) assists in allocating the appropriate size of
aircraft in accordance with demand on each route. This results
in an opiimal allocation of aircraft to meet demand, leading 1o
reduced fuel consumption and lower landing and navigation

fees at airporis.

« Pursuing Efficiency through Limited Number

of Aircraft Types

In order to expand our network to meet demand trends,
we need to maintain a certain number of aircraft types,
differentiated by capacity, cruising range, and other factors,

Fuel Consumption per Seat by Aircraft Type

(%)
120

100 =< ----memee

80

Wide-Body'
Increasing B777-300ER

B747-400 B777-300ER

{Current Feet)

Notes: 1. Figures are based on Narita-New York route.

Wide-Body?
Retiring B7475R, Increasing B777

B747SR  B747-400 B777-300

[Curent Fleet)

2. Figures are based on Tokyo-Sapporo reute, domestic-use aircraft with full capacity.

ANA is standardizing its jet aircraft to three types - one each of
wide-body, medium-sized, and narrow-body. By narrowing our
focus to these three types, we can enhance the effectiveness
of training and allocation for flight crews and enginzers as well
as eliminate waste. Equipment and aircraft parts inventory can
also be optimized, helping to decrease costs. Through halding
substantial numbers cf aircraft within a limited range of types,
ANA will enjoy scale merits and reduced operating costs.

Introducing Environment-Friendly Aircraft

« Controlling CO2 Emissions and Decreasing Noise

Airlines are dependent on fossil fuel for their operations, and the
conseguent emissions of CO2 place a considerable burden on
the global environment. Environmental performance has been
an impaortant factor for
ANA when selecting
new aircraft, as was the
case with the Boeing
787. Reducing the envi-
ronmental impact of
our business activities
continues to be one

of our most important
management priorities.

Lighter economy seats on domestic routes

Medium-Sized® Narrow-Body? (%)
Introducing 6787 from 2008 Introducing B737-700 in stages
12
d18% (;Il% !
own lown
------------------------ B RRRLLCLEELERECEEL
&, 80
' 60
¥ ' 40
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e — — o
B767-300  B787 B737-500 B737-700
{Current Fleet)

{Current Fleet}




Fleet Strategy:
A Key Part of Our Mission to Become

| Asia’s Number One Airline

The ANA Group Ecology Plan calls for the reduction of COz
emissions per available seat-kilometer (ASK} in the fiscal year
ending March 2008 by 129 from the levet in the fiscal year
ended March 1951. In the fiscal year ended March 2007, we
introduced new environment-friendly aircraft, such as the Boe-
ing 777, and took steps to reduce the weight of equipment on
aircraft servicing domestic routes, including the introduction of
lighter econcmy seats and lighter cargo containers.

We give the same priority te noise recuction and are taking
initiatives in this area as well. Since April 2006, all ANA aircraft in
operation have cleared the toughesi ICAGC (International Clvil
Aviation Organization) noise standard, the Chapter 4 standard.

CLUBANAB)

Enhanced Quality Leading to Stronger

Competitiveness business class services, such as New Siyle, CLUB ANA.

Among cther initiatives, we launched the ANA Business et
« Fresh nitiatives with New Aircraft service on the Centrair—Guangzhou route in the fiscal year ended
fn conjunction with the Fleet Strategy, ANA is focusing on the March 2007, A Boeing 737-700ER is servicing this route, equipped
creation of a more comfortable cabin environment and in-flight with 24 business class seats (CLUB ANA BJ} and 24 economy class
facilities that meet customer needs. seats {Fconomy B). With 155¢m pitch between business class
On domestic routes, we have enhanced Super Sear Premium seals, passengers can enjoy an expansive seat layout. Further-

services to secure high-yield passengers, while on international more, an all-business-class, 36-seat ANA BusinessJet service will
routes we have renewed our first class services and expanded be introduced on the Narita-Bombay route in September 2007,
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Fleet Strategy:
A Key Part of Our Mission to Become

Asia’s Number One Airline

Preparing for Boeing 787 Introduction

» 20% Reduction in Fuel Consumgption

The Boeing 787 is an aircraft that excels in terms of reliability,
comfart, and economical operation. In 2004, ANA placed an
order for 50 Boeing 787 aircraft, positioning it as the successor
to the Boeing 767. In 2008, ANA wili be the first airline in the
world to bring the Boeing 787 into service. The Baeing 787 fuel
consumption is about 20% less than the Boeing 767, generating
high expectations for lower flight costs and CO2 emissions. It
uses the latest Rolls-Royce Trent 1000 engine, which is noted for
its high fuel efficiency and low nolse. Further, the Boeing 787'
body uses carbon fiber compaosite materials that are nine times
stronger and about half the weight of the eqguivalent amount of
materials currently used. Therefore, not only a lighter body but
also lower maintenance costs are expecied.

Boeing 787 Features

= ANA Involved from Development Stage,

Preparations Proceeding Smoothly
In 2004, ANA becarne the "launch customer” for the Boeing 787,
the first airline to place an order for the aircraft. We became

actively involved -
-.f)f'( ';‘i“gzr 2 o

from the develop-
ment stage to make
sure that the new

aircraft would reflect :
our experience as o ' B
an airline and would g
- o
also meet passenger 7
Z
needs. We are ensUt g eciof tne Bosing 757 oBocing

ing that the aircraft’s

body design is appropriate for high-frequency, short-distance

flights. We are also working to confirm the aircraft's reliability by

addressing certain problems that are unique to flight in Japan,
such as in-flight condensation

and winter lightning.

[mproved FlightEfficiency,and Safety; )

« Hlectronic Flight Bag {EFB) installed, allowing reading of electranic

- The Boeing 787 cockpit
is standardized with that of

All Nippon Alrways Co, Ltd.

flight manual and display of aircraft position while over airparts.
- Two Head Up Displays (HLDs) ifst4lled.
“Vertical Situation Display {VSD) instaltad.
« Hectronic checklist.

aircraft body and reduced maintenance costs.
« If compared with equivalent weight of stee, carbon
fiber composite materials are 9 times stronger.

Enhanced Comfortin the PsengeEabi o 7}

+ Compared with existing aircraft, internal cabin pressure
can be brought closer to ground level pressure.

J L

.

windows, allowing mare light and fine views.
= Higher humidity levels can be maintained compared
with existing aireraft, [

*Windows 8cm higher than the 3%cm Boeing 767 ’

the aircraft body.

and other electrical systems from escaping into varéous parts of

i 0% Redunsumption (opared with Boeing
+ « New engine enhances fuel efficiency and reduces noise. .
« System 1o prevent compressed air used in main wing defrosting

the Boeing 777 in order 1o
shorten the transition training
schedule for flight crews. We
are also cooperating with the
engine maker, Rolls-Royce, on
development.

Moreover, for the introduc-
tion of the Boeing 787, ANA
established the B787 Launch
Project in all key cperational
divisions, including the Flight
Operations Division, the
Engineering & Maintenance
Division, and the Inflight
Services Division. Preparations
for a safe, smooth introduciion
are proceeding well,




Review of Operations

The ANA Group’s operations comprise four segments: air trans-
portation, travel services, hotel operations, and other businesses,
such as information and telecommunications and trading and
retailing.

We continue to strive to ensure safe operations and to enhance
the fundamental quality of our air transportation services as welf
as to improve the profitability of

Operating Revenues by 5 t
each segment, thereby enhanc- perating y Segmen

ing the trust placed in us by e et ot
customers and shareholders. ' %
In this section, we give an over-
view of the performance of each
business segment in the fiscal

year ended March 31, 2007,

-~ AirTeansperistion
72.6%

* ANA transferred its hotel business outside

the Group in June 2007, H
e RERELLLELAC LSt Travel Servces
12.1%

Operating Revenues
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Air Transportation

Air Transportation

Highlights

Figares :n parentheses show thange from prev ous soa! year

Air transportation revenues. . . ¥1,248.7 billion (+10.39%)

Operating expenses. . ... s ¥1,169.0 billion (+10.496)
Operatingincome............. ¥79.7 billion (+7.6%)
ROA ... ... .. 5.5% (+0.2 percentage points)

ROA: operating income / simple average of assels

The air transportation segment accounted for 72.6% of total operating
revenues before eliminations.

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Record-High Operating Revenues and Income

Air transportation demand remained solid throughout the fiscal
year under review, supported mainly by business demand deriv-
ing from Japan's continuing economic recovery. We secured

a higher number of domestic passengers compared with the
previous fiscal year, helped by firm business demand as well as
several initiatives to improve competi-
tivenass and convenience. Our Tabi-
Wari discount fare system was also an
important factor in generating new
demand.

The number of internaticnal
passengers also increased from the
previous fiscal year, supported by
strong business demand. Demand on
China routes, which fell in the previ-
oUs year in respcnse to the negative
effect of anti-Japan demonstrations,
recovered completely. Fxpansion of our international network
also proceeded such as reopening our Narita-Chicago route.

In domestic cargo and mail operations, although in the sec-
ond half of the year the operating environment turned severe
as new players entered the market, domestic cargo and mail
volume increased year on year, supported by higher movement
of goods due to the economic recovery. In international cargo
and mail operaticns, volume rose sharply as we expanded Asia
routas and flights in the first half of the year and North America
routes and flights in the second half.

Under these circurnstances, we responded to rising jet
fuel prices. In addition to fare and fuel surcharge revision, we
matched aircraft supply to demand and rigorously reduced
operating costs. As a resuli, we achieved record-high opeérating
revenues and income in air transportation operations in the
fiscal year under review.

a

Reviewy of Operations
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Air Transportation % Domestic Passenger Operations

Domestic Passenger Operations

Highlights
Figures in parentheses show change from previous fiscal year,

Passengerrevenues .......... ¥726.0 billion (+6.0%)
Passenger numbers........... 46.5 million {+2.2%)
Available seat-kilometers .., .. 62.4 hillion (+2.4%)
Unitrevenues ................. ¥11.6 (+¥0.4)

Yield .......................... ¥17.9 (+¥0.6)
Unitprice ... .................. ¥15,624 (43.7%)

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Increases in Both Passenger Numbers and Unit Price

The number of passengers increased, supported by individual
business traveler demand generated by the economic recovery.
The Tabi-Wari discount fare system, introduced in April 2006, also
contributed to the rise in passenger numbers. We achieved a
significant increase in the unit price through the revision of fares
in April 2006 (approximately a 4% fare increase) and the alloca-
tion of seats in line with demand trends.

Moving Flights to High-Profit Routes

While maintaining our basic domestic route network, we worked
to reduce the number of low-profit routes while shifting flights
to routes with higher profitability. In the second half of the year,
we developed new netwaorks based on connecting flights,
mainly bound for Okinawa islands. Seeking enhanced proft-
ability, we further promoted the matching of aircraft supply 1o
demand and introduced smaller aircraft, such as the Boeing
737-700, in order to cut operating costs. Further, in April 2006, we
entered into a code-sharing agreement with Skynet Asia Airways
Co, Ltd,, for all flights on the route from Haneda tc Miyazaki,

Kumamoto, and Nagasaki. This initiative resulted in a major
increase in the numizer of our flights on this route and enhanced
convenience for customers,

Strengthened Competitiveness through Discount Fares
and Enhanced Service
While matching aircraft supply to demand, we also took steps
1o tap intc demand generated by holiday seasons, including
Golden Week, school summer holidays, New Year, and short
national holiday periods, by actively prometing charter flights
and the Tabi-Wari discount fare system. In the second baif of the
year, we introduced the Okinawa travel promotion campaign
Mattarina-Hokkorina Okinawa, Ishigaki, and Miyako nationwide for
the fall and winter seasons.

In passenger services, we increased the number of Super
Seat Premium seats and prometed them on routes with strong
business demand, where they have already proved popular.
in September 2008, in line with the key words “simple” and
“convenient,” we introduced the SKiP service, which eliminates
the need for check-in at airports. We also enhanced the added
value of the ANA Mileage Club in our continuing efforts to
strengthen competitiveness through the provision of improved
and expanded service.

Boeing 777-200

Revenues as a Percentage
of Total Operating Revenues

Operating Revenues

Available Seat-km (ASK) /
Revenue Passenger-km [RPK}/ Load Factor

Unit Revenues / Passenger Yield
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New SKiP Service from September 1, 2006

Previous Domestic Check-In Procedure

ﬂ Reservation and
ticket purchasing

On-line (PC or cedl phone} or
at lravel agency

New SKiP Service

| Reservation and
! ﬂ ticket purchasing
(Seat selection)

On-line (PC or cell phone}
or at travel agency

=3 [lfCREcRed

2 Check-in 3 Ticket
(Seat selection) {Boarding pass)
On-line {PC or cefl phane) Obsain at awport

after 10 p.m. of prios evening

Skip check-in and go directly to .

sequrity inspection
Ay

-

NO0LL

' a Security
V| inspection

Present ticket

- Touch ICor

two dimensional {(QR)code

2 Security
Inspection

™

Super Seat Premim

%| Boarding {Gate)

7

Present ticket

" TouchICor

two dimensicnal{QR) code

3} Boarding [Gate)

~ gar ¢f Operanens

R
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Air Transportation ‘ International Passenger Operations

International Passenger Operations

Highlights

Figures .n parentheses show change from previous hscal year

a2
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Passenger revenues........... ¥278.4 billion (+21.5%)
Passenger numbers........... 4.6 million (+10.1%)
Avatlable seat-kilometers .. ... 26.6 billion (+5.0%)
Unitrevenues ................. ¥10.5 (+¥1.4)
Yield........................... ¥13.8 (+¥1.6)
Unitprice. ...t ¥61,171 (+10.3%)

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Passenger Numbers Increase on Strong Demand

Buoyed by strong business demand, international passenger
operations perfarmed solidly during the fiscal year under review,
recovering completely from the negative effect of the April 2005
anti-Japan demonstrations in China. In this favorable operating
environment, we achieved synergies through the expansion

of our network by reopening the Narita-Chicago route and
increasing flight frequencies on China and other Asia routes. As a
result, growth in the number of international passengers during
the year exceeded that in passenger seat availability.

We moved on several fronts 1o improve service, targeting
growing markets with our £co-Wari individual discount fares and
implementing the Live/China/ANA campaign. Convenience was
enhanced by our relocation to the South Wing of Terminal 1 at
Narita Airport in June 2006, and we completed the introduction
of the New Style, CLUB ANA service on all North America routes.
We also launched the ANA Business Jet service on the Centrair-
Guangzhou route,

Expanding Our International Route Network
in our route network, we targeted the dynamic business growth
areas of Asia and, in particular, China. We maiched supply 10
demand on the Kansai-Qingdao, Xiamen and Narita-Qingdao,
¥iamen routes through the introduction of smaller aircraft and
increased flights, We increased flights on the Narita-Singapore
route from COcteber 2006 and opened two new routes, Centrair-
Tianjin in February 2007 and Centrair-Guangzhou in March 2007,
The recpening of the Narita-Chicago route in October 2006
reinforced our network covering North America, including transit
demand in the U.S. Midwest and Canada. A new code-sharing
agreement was reached with Swiss International Airlines, and we
expanded our existing code-sharing agreements with Shanghai
Airlines and Asiana Airlines,

Improved Infrastructure and Service

With ANA's mave 0 the South Wing of Terminal 1 at Narita
Airport, 10 Star Alliance members now share the same terminal,
This has resulted in a significant reduction in transit times for
passengers using cur Asian netwerk or traveling with ¢ur Euro-
pean and U.S. partners. Also, service has been enhanced with

Route Expansion during Year under Review

Centrair
Tial'l]an/ Chicago®
Qingdao Q o= Narita
Kansai
Yiamen [
Guangzhou O .

ol —
Bangkok

OG=——
Singapore

Revenues as a Percentage
of Total Qperating Revenues

Operating Revenues

K]

Available Seat-km (ASK) /
Revenue Passengar-km (RPK) / Load Factor
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Linit Revenues / Passenger Yield
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the introduction of Smari-e service, which targets simplicity and
convenience, as well as more extensive lounge facilities.

Further, ANA developed ties with other companies to promote
e-ticketing for flights. At the end of March 2007, with systems
connection to 27 airlines completed, the passenger utilization
ratio of e-ticketing service rose to 70%.

Enhanced Internet Sales Service for International Routes
The ANA SKY WEB site, which handles internet ticket sales for
international flights, has been renewed and upgraded. Reserva-
tions can now be made for overseas onward-bound flights of
other airlines as well as for award tickets, including those of
affiliated companies. The site also handles changes to reserva-
tions and repayments. A range of services based on information
technology have now been enhanced by their integration into
Smart-e ticket.

ANA'S lounge at Narita Birport won the Fiscal Year 2006 Good Design Award for creating a sense
of high-quality space.

Voo
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Air Transportation

Cargo and Mail Operations

Highlights

Figures in parentheses show change from pravious fiscal year.

Cargo and mail revenues. . . ¥105.1 billion (+8.7%)

Cargovolume .............. 735.5 thousand tons (+6.7%)
Cargorevenues ............ ¥92.7 billion (+9.19%)
Mail volume................ 106.4 thousand tons (+4.5%)
Mail revenues .. .......... .. ¥12.3 biilion (+6.09%)

Domestic Cargo and Mail

Highlights

Figures in parentheses show change from previous fiscal year,

Cargovolume ... .......... 457.9 thousand tons (+3.9%)
Cargorevenues ............ ¥30.5 billion (+3.1%)

Mail volume .. ..., 91.0 thousand tons (+4.0%)
Mail revenues .............. ¥8.9 billion (+4.19%)

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Increased Deliveries Result in Higher Cargo

Volume and Revenues

In the first half of the year under review, cargo volume increased
compared with the previous year, driven by the strong economy
and its positive effect on the movement of goods and a decline
in the volume of cargo carried by competitors. In the second
half, the operating environment grew severe. In November
2006, Galaxy Airlines Co.,, Ltd. (GXY), entered into a code-sharing
agreement with Japan Airlines (JAL), and this had an adverse
impact on certain of our routes, However, over the whole

year, the trend was generally favorable, with increased cargo

Cargo and Mail Operations

deliveries between companies and shipments of vegetables due
to the warm winter. Cargo volume and revenues both increased
year on year.

Late-night scheduled cargo flights were adversely affected by
scheduling changes due to maintenance and repair work on a
Haneda Airport runway and by the eniry of GXY into the market.
However, the introduction of the Boeing 767 freighter on the
Haneda-5age route meant that we were able to meet late-night
cargo flight demand.

Mail Volume Also Increases

Mail volume rose from the previous fscal year as Japan Post
deliveries increased during the summer Ochugen gift season,
and late-night scheduled cargo flights also performed well.

International Cargo and Mail

Highlights

Figures in parentheses show change from pravious fiscal year,

Cargovolume........... 277.6 thousand tons {+11.6%)
Cargorevenues ......... ¥62.1 billion (+12.3%)

Mail volume . ............ 15.4 thousand tons {(+8.0%}
Mail revenues ........... ¥3.4 billion (+11.2%)

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Significant Increases in Volume Centering

on North America and China Routes

In the first half of the year under review, shipment volume grew
as Asia routes serviced by cargo freighters were expanded and
flights increased. From August 2006, ANA & JP Express Co,,

Ltd. began cargo services on the Haneda-Kansai-Shanghai
route. In the second half, shipment volume increased sharply,

Revenues as a Percentage Cargo and Mail Volume:

Revenues from Cargo and Mail
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Building a Business Foundation with an Expanding Network I
P

Bouing 767-30C rre\gh{ér

despite a decline in shipments from Eurcpe. There was a signifi-
cant rise in shipments from North America, and shipments from
Southeast Asia and China also grew, supportad by increases in
supply volume and robust cargo movement during the Christ-

mas season.
centered on Nerth America and China routes. In October 20086,
we introduced our fourth Boeing 767 freighter and established Growth in Mail Volume from North America
the Centrair-Chicago route. We also increased flights on China and “Next-Day Arrival” Deliveries to Shanghai -
routes and recpened the Narita—Chicago passenger route. Despite a decrease in shipments from Europe and China to -
QOutbound shipment volume was up year on year, reflecting fapan, shipments from North America increased, and we %
a strengthened sales system and increased flights on North shipped higher volume an cur “next-day arrival” delivery service 92
America, China, and other Asia routes. However, shipments to from Japan to Shanghai. Revenues also grew due to an increase g
Europe decreased. Inbound shipment volume also increased, in the volume of long-haul mail, which has a high unit price. &
5]
| 2
Air Transportation | Other Transportation Services
8
2

QOther Transportation Services

Highlight

Figure in parentheses shows change from previous fiscal year.

Other transportation services revenues ... ¥139.0 billion
(+14.4%)

We worked to increase revenues from in-flight sales as well

as from aircraft maintenance and ground handling services
provided to other airlines, such as passenger check-in and
baggage handling. In the year under review, revenues from ANA
Real Estate Co,, Ltd,, were transferred from the other businesses
segment to the air transportation segment. As a result, revenues
increased 14.4%, to ¥139.0 billion from the previcus year.

Catering service




\
|

Rev.evs of Operaions

B

All N.ppon Airways Co, Ld

‘ Travel Services

Travel Services

Highlights
Figures in parentheses show change from previous fiscal year,
Travel services revenues . .. ... ¥208.0 billion (+4.39%6)
Operating expenses. .......... ¥206.1 billion {+5.0%)
Operating income... .. ....... ¥1.9 billion (-40.3%}
Domestic package tours

YEVENUeS . ... ... ¥140.5 billion (+2.8%)

International package tours

FEVENUES .. ..ot ¥45.6 billion (+10.7%)
Otherrevenues,............... ¥21.7 billion (+1.6%)
ROA ... ... . 3.8% (-2.9 percentage poinis)

The travel services segment accounted for 12.1% of total operating
revenues before eliminations.

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Increases in Both Revenues and Customer Numbers
The travel services segment recorded increases in both
operating revenues and customer numbers as tourism demand
stayed firm. However, operating income declined due to fierce
price competition and stepped-up investment in IT systems.

In dormestic travel services, we continued to promote our Sky
Holiday travel packages while embarking on @ number of new
initiatives. In a tie-up with Hato Bus Co, Ltd., we launched original
excursion tours and environmental education tours to such
facilities as the Toyota Shirakawa-
Go Eco-Institute. In international e
travel services, we expanded the L OG0

Travel Services Revenues

departure days” for selected products. We continue to develop

products that target demand among senior citizens, such as

baby boomer couples.

Strengthening Internet-Based Direct Sales Business
in June 2006, we launched Dynamic Package (Tabi-Saku), our

Internet-based direct sales product for domestic travel. This
service allows travelers to freely combine flights and hotel

accommadation. Deployed anead of other companies, Dynamic
Package has enjoyed great success, with more than 20,000 users
at the end of March 2007.

Passenger Sales Consigned
to ANA Sales Co., Ltd.

In the fiscal year under review, ANA
transferred the consignment of all
flight ticket sales to ANA Sales Co,, Ltd.
{excluding domestic corporate sales).

Domestic Package ¢
content of our Hallo Tours and Tours hevenges. | 10570 | 136794 | 124650
generated demand through such | imatonalackage | 4666 | 41,245 | 41,585
innovations as “women-only Uther Revenues N7901 2450 | 23,759
Okinawa
Revenues as a Percentage Operating Revenues Operating Income / Assets / ROA
of Total Operating Revenues Operating Income Margin
(¥ Bivions) {¥ Blkians) %) § Bllang) (%)
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Hotel Operations

Hotel Operations

Highlights

Figuses in parenihieses show change from previous fiscal year

Hotel operations revenues. ..., ¥66.6 billion (+0.4%)
Operating expenses............. ¥61.4 hillion (-0.5%)
Operating income .............. ¥5.2 billion (+12.7%)
Accommodation revenues ..... ¥25.8 billion (+3.7%)
Banquetrevenues ... .......... ¥19.0 billion (+2.8%}
Food and beverage revenues ... ¥16.6 billion {(+0.3%)
Otherrevenues ......... .. o ¥5.1 billion (-19.094)
ROA . ... .. ... 3.6% (+0.1 percentage point)

The hotel operations segment accounted for 3.9% of total operating
revenues before eliminations.

Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007

Establishment of IHG ANA Hotels Group Japan

Joint Venture

Segment operating revenues and operating income both
increased, supported by steady demand throughout the year.

At our flagship hotel, ANA Hotel Tokyo, rigorous yield manage-
ment in accommodations boosted both capacity utilization and
average room unit cost. As a result, the hotel recorded higher
revenues in all segments: accammodations, banguets, and food
and beverage. ANA hotels in the Okinawa rescrt area also posted
higher operating revenues as tourism demand stayed robust,

In Decermnber 2006, we formed a joint venture with the
InterContinental Hotels Group, the world'’s largest hotel group
by number of rooms. The joint venture, IHG ANA Hotels Group
Japan, will play a central role in our efforts to strengthen hotel
operating functions.

Cn June 1, 2007, in dine with the ANA Group Mid-Term

Revenues as a Percentage
of Total Operating Revenues

Operating Revenues

IHG CEO Andiew Cosslett and ANA President and CEO ANA nterContinental Hatel Tokyo

Mineo Yamamaolte

Corporate Strategy (April 2006 0 March 2010), ANA transferred
the shares and assets of 14 subsidiary companies, including 13
directly managed hotels, outside the Group.

IHG ANA Hotels Group Japan
will continue to operate and
franchise the 30 domestic hotels
in its portfolio, including the 13
transferred hotels mentioned
above.

Guest service

Hotel Operations Revenues
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Other Businesses

Other Businesses

Highlights

ligures in parentheses show change from previous fiscal year,

Operatingrevenues. .............. ¥196.8 billion (+3.19)
Operating expenses............... ¥191.2 hillion (+3.9%)
Operatingincome.............. .. ¥5.6 billion (-17.3%)

Trading and retailing revenues ... ¥136.7 billion (+77%)
Information and telecommunications

revenues ...l ¥26.3 billion (+1.29%) ANA House Tokyo {Duty free shop)

Real estate and building maintenance . A
Information and Telecommunications Revenues
FEVENUES ... ... ¥12.5 billion (=27 5%} . . . . . .
o Infini Travel Information, Inc., which provides an international
Otherrevenues.................... ¥21.1 billion (+2.9%} . . . - .
i reservation and ticketing system te airlines and travel agencies,

ROA . ... 4.5% (+0.2 percentage peints)

made good progress with its INFINILINX Internet reservations

) . tocl and other strategic products. With the rebound in tourism
The other businesses segment accounted for 11.4% of total operating

revenues before eliminations demand for Asia, especially South Korea and China, the number
of international reservation and ticketing system transactions
Overview of fiscal year ended March 2007 rose sharply, resulting in higher revenues.
ANA Information Systems Planning Co,, Ltd., which principally
Trading and Retailing Revenues provides information systems development, maintenance, and
In March 2006, All Nippon Airways Trading Co. Ltd., which operations services to ANA Group companies, received orders
conducts the trading and retailing of goods, merged with for the 5KiP service, which will renew systems throughout the
ANK Trading Co, Ltd. and strengthened its sales system. In Group. It also received crders for development related to new
the trading division, all segments performed well, with higher travel system services. The maintenance and operations division
transactions in electronic components leading to a consider- received orders from ANA related to new systems, and it also
able increase in revenues fram provided services to companies outside the Group. As a result,
. . Other Businesses Revenues ; ; [ :
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Other Revenues 1| 20571 19003 maintenance revenues.
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CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility)

In April 2007, the Company established the CSR Promotion Division, with the objective of further enhancing corporate value by
mobilizing the entire Group in the areas of society, the environment, and sustainable co-existence.

CSR - Basic Perspective and Promotion

Basic Perspective

The ANA Group has a diverse range of stakeholders — customers,
shareholders and investors, employees, business partners, and
local communities. The foundation of our CSR activities is 1o
fulfill our respansibility 1o stakeholders through constant com-
munication with them, allowing us to co-exist with society in a
sustainable manner while enhancing corporate value.

CSR means that each ANA Group member understands and
follows the ANA Group Corpaorate Philosophy, thereby giving all
stakeholders a sense of security and trust. With our responsibil-
ity for safety at the core, we will fulfill our responsibilities 1o
stakeholders in the following three categories:

1. We will fulfill our economic responsibility® by ensuring safety
and compliance (base ling).

2. To improve quality and employee motivation, we wilf fulfill
our responsibility to customers by enhancing CS (Customer
Satisfaction) and to employees by increasing ES (Employee
Satisfaction}.

3. We will fulfill our responsibility for social innovation by helping
to solve community and environmental problems.

* Economic respensibility is the responsibility to implement thorough risk managernent and
1o effactively and efficiently run business operations. Together with compliance responsibility,
the internal control system has been reinforced.

ANA’s Perspective on C5R

<N

/ Customers Shareholders

%
Business *
Partners

i {quality enhancement) .

V7Y 2

n = Public
Lommunities Finandial Responsibility \ ities /

‘\

Responsibility to Social Innovation* Employees ‘

Customer Satisfaction Employee Satisfaction
s ES/ - frrotevation enhancement)

Compliance Responsibility

_ Safety Responsibility

Global Environment

* ANA's Social Innovation: The rale ANA plays through possibie cooperation and support from
a corporate standpoint toward the solution of social and environmental problems.

External Evaluations

ANA Achieves Inclusion in FTSE4Good Index’

In Seprember 2006, ANA was selected for inclusion in the
FTSE4Goed Index, an internaticnally recognized index of corpo-
rate social responsibility investment.
For inclusion, companies must meet
evaluation criteria in the following
areas: environmenial conservation . K Hmea
activities, support of human rights,
positive relationships with stake-
holders, and prevention of corrupt

practices and bribery.

* The FTSE4Good Index is one of twa major international
indlices for socially responsible investinent (SRI). FTSE
is an independent company owned by the Financial - FTSE
Times and the London Stock Exchange. It creates T
and manages indices measuring ihe performance of
companies by business, financigl, and ather criter:a.

Cort meate of Merrbershop

AAA Rating for Advanced Sustainable

Management Strategy

In 2006, LL.S-based Innovest Strategic Value Advisors, which
rates more than 2,000 corporations around the world on envi-
ronmentat and social issues, gave ANA a Triple A ("AAA") rating,
the highest of seven ratings. Of the 16 airlings rated in 2006, only
4 received this rank. Qur advanced sustainable management
strategy has therefore earned the top rating among airlines in
Asia and the United States.
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Environmental Conservation Activities

Under the slogan “Thinking cf People and Earth," ANA encourag-
es employees to raise their environmental awareness and, at the
same time, implements a variety of envircnmental conservation
activities. The ANA Group Ecology Plan, which covers the period
from April 2003 to March 2008, sets cut a range of activities,
frorm environmental compliance to forestation.

Efforts to Counter Climate Change

The core initiative of the ANA Group Ecology Plan is to counter
climate change through the reduction of CO2 emissions, The
plan calls for reducing CO2 emissions per available seat-kilometer
{ASK) in the fiscal year ending March 2008 by 12% from the

level in the fiscal year ended March 1991, We have implemented
various initiatives in order to attain this target. The amount of
COn emitted by ANA aircraft for the fiscal year ended March
2007 was 8.11 million tons, an increase of 4.4% from the previous
year, reflecting operational expansion. CO2 emissions per ASK
were 24,63 grams of carbon, slightly higher than in the previous
year. However, the level of approximately 129 lower than the
base-year level of the fiscal year ended March 1991 has been
maintained.

ANA's CO2 Emissions per ASK/ Fuel Consumption
k) ) o L Ig-C Comverted 1 carbenfASK)
4 0

3 E—ﬂ-{l\o g 7

0
2 24,45
{Target)

0 91 92 93 9% 9 965 97 98 99 D0 O 02 03 04 05 06 OF 08 O
] Fuel Consumprien (million k) ~Cr— (0 Emissions per Unit (g -C Converted 10 carbon/aSk)
{Vears ended March 31)

Social Contribution Activities

Through its activities, the ANA Group maintains close relations
with and makes wide contributions to local communities and
seciety.

Lity of the Valley Presentation Event

On June 9, 2006, ANA Group cabin crew and airport ground staff
visited 52 hospitals around the country, including the Japanese
Red Cross Society Medical Center. They presented bookmarks
made from lily of the valiey pressed flowers to patients. The

lilies of the valley came from the area around New Chitose
Airport.

This event has been carried out since 1956, Patients and
hospital staff show great appreciation every year

for these gifts. -
Lily of the valley bookmark .

Presenting the lily of the valley bookmarks

Asada’s Memorial Flight

On April 21, 2006, more than 100 ANA Group volunteers served
on a special 56-minute flight between Sendai and Yamagata

for the pupils of the Nishitaga Hospital School for the Physically
Challenged. The original idea for this flight dated back 43 years
to Captain Tadashi Asada*. For those pupils who were not abte to
make it 1o the airport, & virtual flight was simulated at the school.
* See ANA's CSR Report 2005, page 29, for further derails.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Overview

Economic Conditions

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, despite the negative influence
of crude oil price hikes, the Japanese economy saw an upturnin
employment and continued growth in capital investment on the
back of improved corporate earnings. In the second half of the year,
although consumer spending began to weaken, the economy
continued trending toward recovery.

Trends in the Air Transportation Industry
Global Air Transportation Industry
In 2006, demand for international air transportation rose, with
increases of 5.9% in revenue passenger-kilometers and 4.6% in cargo
ton-kilometers.

Demand grew steadily in the Asia-Pacific region, with revenue
passenger-kilometers up 5.3% and cargo ton-kilometers up 4.7%.
In North America, revenue passenger-kilometers increased 5.7%
and cargo ton-kilometers rose 6.0%. And, Europe saw a 5.3% increase
in revenue passenger-kilormeters and a 1.7% rise in cargo ton-
kilometers. In particular, the Middle East enjoyed marked growth in
demand for air transportation, with increases of 15.4% in revenue
passenger-kilometers and 16.1% in cargo ton-kilometers.

Yearly Change in Revenue
Passenger-km

) %)
30 30

Yearly Change in Cargo Ton-km
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Domestic Air Transportation Industry

Domestic Routes

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the number of passengers
on scheduled domestic routes rose 2.6% from the previous year, to
96.9 million. The Tokyo-Sapporc and Tokyo-Okinawa trunk routes
recorded increases in passengers, but the number of passengers
on other trunk routes declined. Overall, the number of passengers
on trunk routes declined 1.2% from the previous year, to 386 million.
Local routes performed well overall, with the number of passengers
rising 5.3% from the previous year, to 58.3 million. The volume of
cargo rose to 904.9 thousand tons, an increase of 1.7% from the
previous year.

International Routes

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the number of passengers
carried by Japanese airlines on international routes declined 1.5%
from the previous year, te 174 million. Demand on Asia routes, such
as China, South Korea, and Taiwan, was robust, and the number of
passengers on these routes rose 6.1% from the previous year, to 106
million. However, the number of passengers on continentat United
States, Europe, Oceania, and other routes declined. The volume of
cargo declined 1.1% from the previous year, t¢ 1,310.4 thousand tons.

Number of Passengers {argo Tons
{Mikans) n {Thousand tons]
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ANA Group

Improving Profitability

The ANA Group comprises All Nippon Airways Co,, Ltd. (ANA),
128 subsidiaries, and 44 affiliates. The Group's operations consist
of Air Transportation, Travel Services, Hotel Operations, and Other
Busingsses.

Performance in the Year Ended March 31, 2007

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, thanks to measures

to increase revenues and revisions of fares on domestic and
international routes, operating revenues were up 8.8%, to a record
¥1,4896 billion. The Company limited aperating expenses to a 9.2%
increase, to ¥1,397.4 billion, by partially offsetting hikes in fuel costs
through efforts to match supply to demand and standardize the fleet
in order to reduce operating costs as well as rigorous cost reduction
efforts. As a result, operating income rose 3.8%, to a new high of
¥92.1 billion, with all operating segments posting profits.

In net non-operating expenses, improvement in net interest
expenses due to a reduction in interest-bearing debt and a gain on
sale of investments in securities helped to counteract expenses
incurred due to a loss on the disposal of aircraft parts and refurbishment
expenses accompanying the return of lease aircraft, an impairment
loss for aircralt, and a loss on the dispesal of assets accompanying
ANA's relocation to Passenger Terminal 1 at Narita Airport. As a result,
net income was up 22.2%, tc ¥32.6 billion. ROA improved 0.3
percentage points, to 5.0%.




Review of Operating Segments

Air Transportation

Segment revenues increased 10.3%, to ¥1,248.7 billion, mainly as a
result of higher passenger revenues from international and domestic
routes. Operating expenses rose 10.4%, to ¥1,169.0 billion. RCA
improved 0.2 percentage points, 1o 5.5%.

Air Transportation Expenses

Fuel and fuel tax expenses

Fuel and fuel tax expensas were up 31.3%, to ¥236.1 billion, due to
the effact of crude cil price hikes and increased usage accompanying
operational expansion. As in the previous year, the Company sought
to control the risk of jet fuel price fluctuations and stabilize expenses
by hedging risks using crude oil and jet fuel commaodity derivatives
in planned, ongoing hedge transactions for specific periods of time.
Further, to curb usage volumnes, the Company took fuel management
measures to increase fuel efficiency, including engine washing and
optimal altitude operation,

Landing and navigation fees

Although the number of flights increased 6.7% on domestic routes
and 14.0% on international routes, landing and navigation fees only
rose 3.8%, to ¥104.2 billion, thanks to the use of smaller aircraft.

Aircraft leasing expenses

Aircraft leasing expenses were up 0.6%, to ¥87.2 billion, mostly
attributable to & slight increase in seat blocking expenses asseciated
with code-sharing with Skynet Asia Airways and United Airlines, even
though lease fees were decreased by purchasing of lease aircraft.

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses rose 19.8%, to ¥81.4 billion,
mainly because of an increase in the number of Company-owned
aircraft from 109 to 125 and accelerated depreciation that accompanied
the decision to sell Boeing 747-400s.

Aircraft maintenance expenses — parts and contracts

Aircraft maintenance expenses rose 4.7%, 1o ¥64.2 billion. This
increase was principally due to expenses related to long-term safety
measures invalving the replacement of Pratt & Whitney engine
blades, a rise in maintenance done for other companies, and
increased maintenance outsoUICing expenses.

Personnel costs

Personnel costs increased 1.1%, to ¥232.7 billion, largely because of
higher numbers of personnel in the Company and Group companies
due tc business expansion.

Sales commissions

Sales commissions were up 14.2%, to ¥91.6 billion, which was
primarily attributable to higher numbers of domestic and
international passengers and a rise in redemption expenses
accompanying the increased membership of the ANA Mifeage Club.

Outsourcing expenses
QOutsourcing expenses increased 10.396, to ¥80.9 billion, stemming
from the development of new routes for network expansion.

QOther expenses

Other expenses rase 6.7%, to ¥190.3 billion, mostly related to higher
in-flight service expenses that accompanied higher numbers of
passengers and the lump-sum recognition of expenses arising from
the renewal of reservations terminals.

Travel Services

Segrent revenues rose 4.3%, to ¥208.0 billion. Operating expenses
grew 5.0%, to ¥206.1 billion. Cperating income was dowit 40.3%, o
¥1.9 billion. ROA declined 2.9 percentage peints, to 3.8%, mainly the
result of higher operating expenses accompanying investment in
systems and a 3.5% increase in assets.

Hotel Operations

Segment revenues edged up 0.4%, to ¥66.6 billion. Operating
expenses edged down 0.5%, 1c ¥61.4 billion. Operating income rose
12.7%, to ¥5.2 billion. ROA improved 0.1 percentage point, to 3.6%,
mainly related to improved profit that accompanied increased
revenues.

Other Businesses

Segment revenues rose 3.19, to ¥196.8 billion. Operating expenses
increased 3.9%, 1o ¥191.2 billion. Operating income decreased 17.3%,
to ¥5.6 billion. ROA improved 0.2 percentage points, 1o 4.5%, largely
the result of an 11.5% decrease in assets that resulted from the sale
of commercial real estate business.
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Yen (Millions)

Years ended March 31, 2007 2006 2005
Air Transportation Expenses
Fuel and fuel tax . ¥ 236,128 ¥ 179827 ¥ 148584
Landing and navigation fees ... 104,281 100,488 97,720
Adrcraft 1 asing .. ... 87,222 86,706 94,294
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... .. 81,465 67,984 61,703
Aircraft maintenance — parts and CoNtracts ... ... 64,272 61410 53,080
Parsonnel ... e 232,755 230,151 220,387
Sales COMMISSIONS ... oo 91,645 80,274 77,753
UL OUIC NG o et e 80,992 73,442 71,461
L0 = 190,301 178,269 173918
1,169,061 1,058,551 998,900
Travel Services EXpenses . ... ... ... ... 206,106 196,274 187,170
Hotel Operations EXpenses . ... .. .. ... ..o i 61,415 61,741 69,965
Other Businesses EXPensSes. . ... .. oooiioir 191,281 184,123 176,375
Total OperatingExpenses .................... ... ... . ... 1,627,863 1,500,689 1432410
Intercompany Eliminations ........... ... ... (230,395) (220,699) (217.371)
Consolidated OperatingExpenses ................ ... .......................... ¥1,397,468 ¥1279990 ¥1,215039

Nole: Operating expenses figures are before intercompany eliminations.
Non-Operating Income (Expenses)

Net non-operating expenses rose ¥4.7 hillien, to ¥41.1 biflion. This
increase was primarily associated with an ¥18.6 billion gain on sale
of investments in securities mainly due to the disposal of a part of
shares of ANA Real Estate Co, Ltd, written off in the previous fiscal
year and refurbishment expenses of ¥6.5 billion accompanying the

return of lease aircraft. These factors offset such improvements

as a ¥9.6 hillion decrease in impatrment loss frem the previous year
despite a ¥10.7 billion loss for two Boeing 747-400s slated for sale;
a ¥3.7 nillion reduction in special retirement benefit expenses; and
a ¥2.4 billion decrease in interest expenses due to the reduction in
interest-bearing debt.

Yen (Millions)

Years ended March 31, 2007 2006 2005
Interest and dividend iINCOME .. .. .. ¥ 5353 ¥ 45681 ¥ 5418
Gain on sale of property and equipment ... 1,073 2638 1,581
L £ I i = T = (17,708} (20172) (21,17
Loss on sale or disposal of property and equipment ... (8,402) (10,577) (22115)
I A N L 0SS L. (10,809) (20451) -
Valuation 10ss on investments in seCUrilies ... ... . (215) (751) (485)
Valuation loss on otherlong-term receivables ................ ... amn - (5,098)
Equity inincome (lossy of affiliates ... .o 284 (1,335) 97
Rebate on aircraft purchases . o - - 15,669
Gain on sale of investments insecunities ... . .. 1,239 18632 281
Amartization of net transitional retirement benefit obligation ....................... (6,713} (6712) 6712
Special retirement benefit 8xXpenses . ... .. (600} 4,373) (1,858
Refurbishment expenses for return of lease aiscraft ... ... o (6,533} - -
OTNET, Ml L 1,916 2051 1,344

Total L ¥(41,126) ¥(36,369) ¥(32,095)
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Per Share Data

Net income pert share increased 7.2%, to ¥16.77. Net assets per share
rose 14.9%, to ¥204.42. For the year ended March 31, 2007, cash
dividends were ¥3.00 per share.

Cash Flows

Fundamental Approach to Sources of Funds

The ANA Group's fundamental approach to sources of funds is to
keep capital expenditures within the limits of operating cash flows
including repayment of lease obligations, and to expand capital
while controlling interest-bearing debt by managing free cash flow.
We are working to achieve cur medium-te-long-term target for a
debt/equity ratio of about 2 times and to reinforce the soundness
of our financial position.

Overview of the Year under Review

Cash flows from financing activities of ¥100.8 billion offset free cash
Nlow of ¥30.4 billion, which is cash flows from operating activities
minus cash flows from investing activities. As a result, cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the fiscal year totaled ¥172.2 billion, down
¥70.5 billion fram the previous fiscal year-end.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities rose ¥30.1 billion, to ¥158.7 billicn,
mainly due to a ¥27.0 billion decrease in income taxes paid, to

¥20.1 billion, which compensated for a ¥1.3 billion decline in income
before income taxes and minority interests, to ¥51.0 billion. The
interest coverage ratio improved from 6.3 times to 8.9 times.

Cash Flows from investing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities increased ¥81.8 billion, to ¥128.2
billion. Cash outflows were related to the acquisition of aircraft and
aircraft parts and the advances of payment for new aircraft, while
cash inflows were related to income associated with the sale of
aircraft, the redemption of securities, and proceads from collection of
advances. The principal cause of the increase in cash flows from
investing activities was the sale of a part of the shares of ANA Real
Estate and the accompanying proceeds from collection of advances
of ¥12.2 billion recognized in the previous fscal year.

Cash Flows frem Financing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities amounted to ¥100.8 billion, primarily
because of ¥95.8 billion in proceeds from the issuance of new stock
bocked in the previous fiscal year, stepped-up repayment of debt and
bonds, and payrment for dividends.

Cash Flows from Operating Interest Coverage Ratio /

Activities Debt/Equity Ratio
(¥BXlions} (hrrees)
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Financial Position

Total Assets
Total assets at fiscal year-end decreased 3.9%, to ¥1,602.0 billion.

Current Assets

Current assets were down 20.4%, to ¥422 0 billion. This decrease
was mainly due to an increase in cash at the previous year-end that
accompanied fund-raising activities, including the issuance of new
shares, as well as lower cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year under review that resulted from capital investment centered on
aircraft and stepped-up reduction of interest-bearing debr.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets increased 3.9%, to ¥1,179.5 billion, primarily the result
of the acquisition of 22 aircraft through the purchase of new-model
aircraft and aircraft after lease and advance payments for aircraft
slated for introduction.

Liabilities
Liahilities decreased 8.9%, to ¥1,196.1 billion.

Current Liabilities Interest-Bearing Debt (including
Current liabilities declined 1.6%,  off-balance liabilities)

to ¥4730 billicn, mainly because (?;m)

of a 68.2% decrease in other
current liabilities due to such
factors as the direct adding of
deferred gain on hedging EX
instruments to net assets, which '
counteracted a 16.6% increasein | &0
accounts and notes payable -
trade stemming from higher ER
purchase prices for fuel and
aircraft parts.
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Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities declined 13.1%, to ¥723.1 billion, chiefly
attributable to progress in the repayment of bonds and long-term
debt, The balance of interesi-bearing debt decreased 11.4%, to
¥749.4 billion,

Yen (Millions)
As of March 31, 2007 2006 2005
Short-term debt:
Short-term Dank 0ans ... ... ¥ 3,500 ¥ B6%0 ¥ 16,045
Current portion of long-term loans. ... ... 110,224 95,748 139,99
Current portion of DONAs aNA NOTES . ..o 45,000 45,000 48,418
158,724 149,438 204,454
Long-term debt (excluding current portion):
Loans, principally from banks. ... 425,722 456,879 487 802
Notesandbonds ................... e 165,000 240,000 250,000
590,722 696,879 737,802
Total interest-bearing debdt ... ¥749,446 ¥846,317 ¥942,256




Total Net Assets

Total net assets amounted 1o ¥405.9 billion, primarily due to an
increase in retained eamings resulting from the recording of ¥32.6
Billion in net income and te the recarding of deferred gain on
hedging instruments in net assets from the year ended March 37,
2007, in accordance with Japanese Corporation Law.

Total Shareholders’ Equity
Fundamental Approach to Shareholders’ Equity

As the 2010 expansion of Haneda
Airport approaches, the Company

Sharehelders Equity / Equity Ratio

is working to enhance its P -
shareholders’ equity. The Company

will continue to steadily implement = - ol
management plans and strategies,

such as the ANA Group Mid-Term —]
Corporate Strategy (April 2006 to

March 2010). The Company will BT —— “a
build a structure that can generate

profits in any business conditions g m
and accumulate profits to increase

Minority Interests
Minarity interests increased 7.8%, to ¥7.6 billion.

Bond Ratings

In response to requests by the Company, Japan Credit Rating Agency,

Ltel. JCR), and Rating and Investment Information, In¢. (R&(), rated ANA-
issued long-term bonds BBB+ and BB, respectively, as of June 2007.

shareholder value, 0 A M 06 83 o 0

St ders gy wem fpocyRAg
Total Shareholders’ Equity at the
End of the Year under Review
Total shareholders’ equity was ¥398 2 billion due to a 50.9% increase
in retained earnings and the incorparation of deferred gain on
hedging instruments into net assets. The equity ratio was 24.9%.

Bond Ratings

AA

COAAT

Aug. 2002

July 2002

=JCR =R&l

BBB* l

BBB

BBB”  002/3 200313 200473

2005/3 200613

2007/3 2007/6

Retirement Benefit Plans

The Cornpany and its domestic consolidatad subsidiaries offer the
following defined benefit plans: welfare pension fund plans, tax
qualified pension plans, defined benefit pension plans, and lump-
sum payment plans. The Company and certain domestic
consolidated subsidiaries offer defined contribution plans in addition
1o defined benefit plans. Further, in certain cases, the Company pays
special retirement benefit upen the retirement of employees.

Yer (Millions)

As of March 31, / Years ended March 31, 2007 2006 2005
Retirement benefit obligation ... ¥(278,278) ¥(265,868) ¥{(262,224)
Plan assets at fair value ... . . 118,190 110939 90,327
Unfunded retirement benefit obligation ... (160,088) (158,925} (171.897)
Net amount Unrecognized . ... 48,510 52,566 64827

(111,578) {(106,363) (107,070}
Prepald PeNSION COST .. ... o e e 1,028 1014 670
Accrued employees’ retirement benefits ... ¥{112,606) ¥(107,377) ¥(107,740)
Net periodic pension and severance Cost . ... o ¥(19,634) ¥(20,591) ¥21278
DS UL Tl ... ottt e e 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure, which rose 6.9%, 1o ¥251.9 billion, mainly
comuprised aircraft-related investment, such as the acquisition of
aircraft, aircraft engines, and aircraft parts, and information systems,

Capital Expenditure Depreciation and Amaortization
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Fleet Composition

As of March 31, 2007 Tenal Owned Leased
B747-400 ..................... 23 21 (+2) 2 {-2)
B777-300 ... 15 {+5) 8 (+4) 7 {+1)
B777-200 ... 23 (+3) 12 (+5) 11 {-2}
B767-300 ..........coiii.l. 56 {+2) 43 (+2) 13
B767-300F (freighter).......... 4 {+1) 0 4 (+1)
B737-700 .......ciiiiiininent, 10 {+6) 6 (+6) 4
B737-500 ...............iel 25 15 (+2} 10 (-2}
B737-400..................... 1 0 1
A321-100. ...l 3{-4 1(+1) 2 (-5)
A320-200........ ... .., 29 {+1) 18 (-5) 11 (+6)
DHC-8-400.........cc0ivvvins. 14 (+3) 0 14 {(+3)
DHC-8-300.................... 5 1 4
DHC-6-300.........c.cevavees 0 {-1) 0 -1 Q
F-50 . 3 (-1) 0 3 (-1)
Total.....oov i 211 (+15) 125 {+16) 86 (-1)

Note: Figures in parentheses show changes from the previous year-end.

Aircraft Procurement

Fundamental Appreach to Aircraft Procurement

ANA is taking steps to establish a fleet cornposition that minimizes the
risk of fluctuations in the economic climate and demand. In those
efforts, the Company will flexibly deploy medium-sized and narrow-
body aircraft to reflect demand trends while increasing flight
frequency to enhance custemer convenience.

In jet aircraft, the Company will reduce operating costs by
introducing fuel-efficient aircraft that are highly economical and
environment-friendly while standardizing the fleet in stages from the
current seven aircraft types to three types; wide-body, medium-sized,
and narrow-hody. Through its strategy, the Campany aims ta achieve
cost competitiveness that surpasses competitors’ and establish a
sustainable competitive advantage.

For further information on the Company's Fleet Strategy, please
refer 1o page 14.

Aircraft Procurement: Results and Plans

Newly introduced aircraft

The Company took delivery of 21 aircraft, comprising five Boeing
777-300s {four purchased, one lease), three Boeing 777-200s
(one purchased, two leases), two Boeing 767-300s {leases), one

Boeing 767-300F cargo aircraft (lease), one Aitbus A320-200 (lease),

six Boeing 737-700s (purchased), and three Bombardier DHC-8-400s
(leases).

Retired aircraft
The Company retired six aircraft, comprising four Airbus A321-100s,
one Fokker 50, and one Bembardier DHC-6-300.

Aircraft purchased after lease

Among the aircraft that it uses, the Company purchased after lease
11 aircraft, comprising two Boeing 747-400s, four Boeing 777-200s,
two Boeing 767-300s, one Airbus A321-100, and two Boging
737-500s.

Leased aircraft after sale
Five Airbus A320-200s were leased after sale.



Employment

As of March 31, 2007, the Group bad 32,460 employees, up 7.1% from
the end of the previous fiscal year. By segment, Air Transpartation

accounted for 23,877 employees, up 7.7%. Travel Services accounted
for 1,861 employees, up 10.8%. Hotel Cperations accounted for 2,604
employees, down 1.2%. QOther Businesses accounted for 4,118
employees, up 7.4%.

Emplayee numbers

As of March 31, 2007 2006 2005

L Qo Yo oV = 11 T T T 23,877 22,170 20,797
TVl SOIVIC S . i 1,861 1,679 1,645
Hotel Oparations . ... ... 2,604 2637 2,887
Other BUSINES S . o 4,118 38356 3,769
TOtal 32,460 30,322 29,008

Altocation of Profits

Fundamental Approach to Allocation of Profits

The Company gives high priority to providing a return 1o
shareholders. The allocation of profits is based on a comprehensive
consideration of business conditicns and performance trends.

In preparation for future operational development, the Company
works to solidify its financial position through retained earnings and
strengthen its management foundations.

Others

In relation to suspicion of major international airlines’ involvement

in a cargo fares and charges cartel, a U.S. law-enforcement agency
investigated the Company’s New York cffice in February 2006. At the
same time, in relation to its investigation, the agency submitied a
warrant to the Company requesting varicus documents relating to
cargo arrivals and departures in the United States. In March 2007,
the United States Federal Bureau of Investigation conducted an
investigation of the Company’s Los Angeles branch, end various
documents were provided. The Company is actively cooperating
with this investigation.

Dividends in the Year under Review

and Plans for the Current Year

In light of the need to further strengthen its inancial position and
increase retained earnings in order to achieve continued steady

growth in earnings even in the fiercer competitive conditions expected,

the Company maintained cash dividends at ¥3.00 per share for the
year ended March 31, 2007.

If the Company reaches its business targets for the current fiscal
vear, it plans to pay cash dividends of ¥5.00 per share for the year
ending March 31, 2008.

Further, in relation to this investigation, in various regions of the
United States and in Canada users of international cargo flights have
filed a number of class actions against airlines, seeking compensation
for damages allegedly resulting from a price cartel among airlines.

In that connection, the Company has received a written complaint
and received information that it is included in complaints. However,
ascertaining and analyzing the details are problematic because clear
demands for specific amounts have not yet been made in any of the
cases.
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Operating Risks

The following risks could have a significant effect on the judgment of
investors in the ANA Group. Further, the forward-looking statements
in the following section are the ANA Group's judgments as of the end
of the consolidated fiscal year under review.

Risks Related to Crude Qil Price Fluctuations

The price of jet fuel comprises such expenses as the cost of
importing, refining, and transperting crude oil and customs tariffs.
Among those costs, the cost of importing crude oil accounts for
approximately 75% of the price of jet fuel. Conseguently, if the price
of crude oil increases, the price of jet fuel will increase, leading to a
significant burden for the Company.

Accordingly, ta control the risk of fluctuations in the price of jet
fuel and to stabilize jet fuel expenses, ANA hedges risks using crude
oil and jet fuel commaodity derivatives in planned, continuous
hedging transactions for specific periods of time. The Company’s
hedging transactions are limited to a certain percentage of aggregate
purchases of fuel in Japan and overseas, with plans for hedging
amounts set quarterly. Individual transactions are maintained within
limits that are set in such a way that the Company’s transactions will
not affect the spot market, and margins are adjusted monthly to
avoid any physical delivery obligations. While temporarily exhibiting a
downward trend, the price of crude il has again started to rise and
remains at a high level.

The Group's fuel and fuel tax expenses in the year under review
were ¥236.1 billion (up ¥56.3 billion from the previous fiscal year),
representing 16.9% of operating expenses. Given the limitations of
the Company's current efforts to offset high crude ol prices through
cost reductions and higher fares and charges, prolonged high crude
oil prices could significantly affect the Company's performance.

Risks Related to Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuations
Because jet fuel purchases, which account for a significant share

of the Company’s expenses, are conducted in foreign currencies,
the depreciation of the yen will have z significant effect on the
Company's profits. Accerdingly, to the greatest extent possible,
foreign currency taken in as revenue is used to pay xpenses
denominated in the same foreign currency, thereby minimizing the
risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuations. In addition, the Company
uses forward exchange agreements and currency options for its jet
fuel purchases to limit the risk of fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates and to stabilize and control payment amounts.

Risks Related to the International Situation

The outbreak of the fragq war and SARS in 2003 had a significant
impact on air transportation and travel operations, especially on
international routes, resulting in a drop of more than ¥30.0 billion
in revenues for that fiscal year. The occurrence of wars, large-scale
terrorist attacks, or outbreaks of contagious diseases could
significantly affect the Company's performance. In its international
operations, the Group is currently expanding its routes, principally
to China, which now accounts for about 20% of revenues from
international operations. The upsurge of anti-lapan sentiment in
China that occurred in the previous fiscal year, triggered by issues

relating to history textbooks, territorial boundaries, and Japan's bid to
become a permanent member of the UN Security Council, has died
down and tourism demand is recovering; but any future tensions in
Sino-Japanese relations or outbreaks of such contagious diseases as
avian flu, which remains an ongoing concern, could significantly
affect the Group’s performance.

Risks Related to Statutory Regulations

As an airline operator, the Group undertakes operations based on

the stipulations of statutory regulations relating to airline operations.
The Group is required to conduct passenger operations and cargo
operations on international routes in accordance with the stipulations
of international agreements, including treaties, bilateral agreements,
and the decisions of IATA (International Air Transport Association).
Further, the Group's operations are constrained by Japanese Antitrust
Law and similar laws and regulations in other countries with regard
1o the pricing of fares and charges.

Risks Related to ANA’s Fleet Strategy

In air transportation operations, the Group is pursuing a fleet strategy
centered on using medium- and small-sized aircraft, standardizing
aircraft models, and introducing highly economical aircraft. However,
measures related 1o the Fleet Strategy could prove ineffective due 1o
the factors given below. Further, the expected benefits of the Fleet
Strategy may diminish significantly.

Dependence on the Boeing Company

In accordance with its Fleet Strategy, the Company has ordered 99
aircraft, of which almost all, 96 aircraft, have been ordered from
Boeing. Therefore, if Boeing was unable te fulfill agreements
between Boeing and the Company due to financial or other issues,
the Group would be unable to acguire aircraft in accordance with
its Fleet Strategy. Such eventualities could significantly affect the
Group's performance.

increase in the cost of raising funds

The Company acquires aircraft through bank loans and bond
issuance as well as through leasing. However, the cost of raising
funds could increase due to changes in the tax system or to the
reorganization of governmental financial agencies that make it
difficult or impossible to raise funds on terms advantageous to the
Company. Such eventualities could significantly affect the Group's
performance.

Risks Relating to Public-Sector Fees

Public-sector fees include landing and navigation fees and other
airport usage fees. In the year under review, airport usage fees for the
ANA Group totaled ¥104.2 billion, or 7.5% of operating expenses. The
government has implemenied a policy to reduce landing fees, which
had the effect of reducing these fees by about ¥12 billion in the year
under review. However, in the year ended March 2004, landing fees at
Osaka (ltami) Airport were increased and a portion of the reductions
for Haneda Airport was cancelled. Further, similar changes could
ocecur in the future,




Risks Related to Environmental Regulations

In recent years, regulatory authorities in Japan and other countries
have introduced numerous statutory regulations addressing such
issues as aircraft noise and emissions, the usage of hazardous
materials, and environmental pollution. The Group shoulders a
cansiderable cost burden in crder to adhere 10 such statutory
regulations. However, the Group may have to shoulder a large
additionat cost burden if current regulations are strengthened or
if new regulations, such as environmental taxes, are introduced.

Risks Related to Competition

The possibility of an increase in costs related to the Group’s air
transpartation operations due 1o such factors as jet fuel expenses,
the cost of raising funds, and responses to environmental regulations
cannot be denied. If such costs increase, in order to secure income, it
is necessary for the Group to reduce indirect fixed costs, reduce costs
by enhancing efficiency through the standardization of aircraft types,
and pass on costs through higher fares and charges. However, because
the Group is in competition with other airlines in Japan and overseas
as well as with alternative forms of transportation, such as the
Shinkansen, on certain routes, passing on costs could diminish
competitiveness and lead to the loss of customers to competitors.
Further, because price competition with competitors greatly restricts
the passing on of costs, an increase in costs could affect the Group's
performance.

Risks Related to Ineffective Joint Ventures

and Strategic Alliances

Through its membership in Star Alliance, the Company enjoys a
variety of benefits, including the sale of tickets to customers of
alliance partners and heightened name recognition outside fapan.
However, the benefits of Star Alliance membership would diminish
if a major partner were to leave the alliance, or if the alliance were
ordered to dissolve or reduce the extent of its activities based on
certain countries’ antitrust laws, Such eventualities could significantly
affect the Group's performance.

Risks Relating to Flight Operations
Aircraft accidents
An aircraft accident weuld give rise to significant expenses
associated with the repair or replacement of aircraft, compensation
for damages, and other items. Although such direct expenses
would be largely met by aviation insurance, 2 medivm-to-long-
term downturn in aviation demand immediately following an
accident could significantly affect the Group's performance. Further,
a major accident involving a code-share flight or even that of a
competitor could similarly lead 1o a reduction in aviation demand
that could affect the Group’s performance.

Technical circular directives

If an issue arises that significantly compromises the safety of

an aircraft, in accordance with the law the Minister of Land,
Infrastructure and Transport issues a technical circular directive.

In sorme cases, operations of the same type of aircraft are not
permitted until the aircraft's safety has been confirmed. Further,
even when the law does not require the issuance of a technical
circular directive, in some cases, where safety cannot be confirmed,
the aperation of the same type of aircraft is voluntarily suspended
in accordance with in-house regulations. The occurrence of such
a situation could significantly affect the Group’s performance.

Risks Related to Unauthorized Disclosure

of Customer Information

The Group holds a huge amount of information relating to
customers, such as that pertaining to the approximately 15.75 million
members (as of March 31, 2007) of the ANA Mifeage Ciub. The full
enactment of the Personal Information Protection Law on April 1,
2005, increases the stringency required for the proper management
of such personal information. The Group undertakes adequate
measures to ensure information security. However, a major leak of
personal information caused by unauthorized access or some ather
factor could carry significant cost, in terms of both compensation and
a loss of public confidence, which could significantly affect the
Group's performance.

Risks Related to Disasters

The Group's data center is laocated in the Tokyo area, while the
operational control for all of the Group’s domestic and international
flights is conducted at Haneda Airport. Further, more than 60% of the
Group's passengers on domestic routes use Haneda Airport. As a
result, a major disaster, such as an earthquake, in the Tekyo area or

a disaster, such as a firg, at the above-mentioned facilities could lead
to a long-term shutdown of the Group’s information systems or
operational control functions that could significantly affect the
Group's performance. Further, the long-term closure of an airport due
to an earthquake, a typhoon, or snow would lead to the suspension
of flight arrivals and departures at that airport during the period of
closure, which could affect the Group's performance.
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Risks Related to IT Systems

Air transportation operations are highly dependent on information
systems for such critical functions as reservations and sales, boarding
procedures, cperaticnal control, and operational management. The
failure of one of those systems or the failure of telecommunications
networks would make it difficult to maintain operations and would
resuit in a loss of public confidence, which could affect the Group's
performance.

Risks Related to Asset Impairment

in April 2005, the Group introduced asset impairment accounting.

in the fiscal year under review, the Group recorded an extraordinary
Ioss of ¥10.8 hillion. However, if the profitability of various operations
deteriorates, the Group may be required to recognize further asset
impairment losses in the future.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

All Nippon Airways Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2007 and 2006

US. dollars
(Thousands)
Yen (Millions) (Note 3)
ASSETS 2007 2006 2007
Current assets:
Cash ¥ 172,958 ¥ 234461 $ 1,465,125
Marketable securities (Note 4) 34 24,645 288
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
(¥540 million in 2007 and ¥244 million N 2008) ............. .. ... 120,499 112,593 1,020,745
Accounts receivable from and advances to non-consolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates .. 2,039 1,580 17,272
10N =] o LT 60,736 57915 514,494
Deferred income taxes —current (Note 8). ... 9,408 23,561 79,695
Prepaid expenses and-0ther CUMmenT @ssets ... ovuvriii e 56,374 75,619 477,544
Total current assets ... 422,048 530,374 3,575,163
investments and long-term receivables:
Investments in securities (NOte 4} . . 59,442 53,561 503,532
Investments in and advances to non-consolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates (NOtE 5 ... 9,246 7,654 78,323
Lease and guaranty deposits ... 21,482 22,404 181,974
Housing loans to employess ... 738 2,092 6,252
Other long-term receivables ... o 40,239 37,713 340,864
Total investments and long-term receivables .................... .. ... 131,147 123,424 1,110,945
Property and equipment {Notes 6 and §):
Flight equipment ... .o 1,170,375 1,046,558 9,914,231
Ground property and eqQUIPIMBNT ... 575,250 583,178 4,872,935
1,745,625 1,629,736 14,787,166
Less accumulated deprecialion ... o i e (872,709) {841,944) {7,392,706)
872,316 787,792 7,394,460
Advance payrnents on airaaft purchase contracts ... 90,952 136,784 770453
CONSIUCTION IM PIOGIESS . . ettt et 5,942 2,833 50,335
Net property and equipment . ... 969,810 927 409 8,215,248
Deferred income taxes — non-current (Note 8). ... 35,556 42,780 301,194
[0 ] e g 11 = & 43,530 42856 368,742
TOtal ASSEES o i e ¥1,602,091 ¥1,666,843 $13,571,292

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




Us. dollars

(Thousands)
Yer (Millions) {Note 3)
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2007 2006 2007
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans, including current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) ........... ¥ 158,724 ¥ 149438 $ 1,344,549
Accounts and notes payable —trade ... 197,869 167,244 1,676,146
Accounts payable to non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates .................. 1,475 1,516 12,495
Advance ticket Sales .. 51,043 46,135 432,385
ACCTUBT BX ISR . e 39,271 40,383 332,664
ACCTUBL INCOME LaXES ... e e 3,369 3,258 28,539
Other current liahilities . ... 21,283 66,874 180,287
Total current liabilities ................ .. .. 473,034 480,848 4,007,065
Long-term liabilities:
Long-ierm debt, less current portion (Note &) ............ ... .. i, 590,722 696,879 5,003,998
Accrued employees'retirement benefits (Note 7} ... o 112,606 107,377 953,884
Deferred income taxes - non-current(Note 8).......o.... .o 1,488 1,816 12,605
Other fong-term fiabilities ... 18,329 26,482 155,265
Total long-term liabilities .................. ... .. ... 723,145 832554 6,125,752
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 11)
Net assets {(Notes 8 and 10}
Shareholders equity. ... ... o 364,545 337.275 3,088,056
Common stock:
Authorized - 3,900,000,000 shares at March 31, 2007 and
3,400,000,000 shares at March 31, 2006
Issued — 1,949,959,257 shares at March 31, 2007 and at March 31,2006, . ... .. 160,001 160,001 1,355,366
Capital SUTPIUS o 125,739 125,605 1,065,133
Retained earmings .. ... e 79,530 52,697 673,698
Less treasury comman stock, at cost
(1,935,975 shares at March 31, 2007 and 3,211,360 shares at March 31, 2006) . .. {725) (1,028) (6,141)
Valuation, translation adjustmentsand others ............................. ... 33,678 9034 285,286
Unrealized holding gain 0n securities .. ... 10,885 5410 92,207
Ceferred gain on hedging iNstruments. ...... .. oo o 23,155 - 196,145
Foreign currency translation adjustments ... ..o (362) (376) (3,066)
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries. .............. ... 7,689 7132 65,133
TOtal NeT ASSEES. .. oo 405912 353441 3,438,475
Total liabilities and netassets ................. ¥1,602,091 ¥1,666,843 $13,571,292
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Consolidated Statements of Income

All Nippon Airways Co, Ltd. and its consclidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31,2007, 2006 and 2005

U.S. dollars
{Thousands}
Yen (Millions) {Note 3)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Operating revenues:
Pass NGl ¥1,004,541 ¥ 914,306 ¥ 8694087 $ 8,509,454
L0 o 92,769 85,039 79,604 785,845
Incidental and other ... 392,348 369,447 343712 3,323,574
1,489,658 1,368,792 1,292,813 12,618,873
Operating expenses:
Aircraft and flight operations . ... 385,554 326622 302,854 3,266,023
Aircraft maintenance .. ... 81,225 86,060 75,583 688,056
In-flight services .. .. oo 66,175 65495 56,527 560,568
Flight control and ground handling .....................o 0o 269,594 258018 248960 2,283,727
Reservations, sales and advertising . .............. ... il 230,327 214588 206,031 1,951,097
General and administrative ..o e e 39,831 35516 36,708 337,408
Depreciation and amortization ...........coo i 88,610 76,201 70,446 750,614
ONEr COSTS .o 236,152 217490 217930 2,000,440
1,397,468 1,279,990 1,215,039 11,837,933
Operating income ... ... 92,190 88,802 71,774 780,940
Non-operating income {expenses):
Interest and dividend inCOMe . ... .. . 5,353 4,681 5418 45,345
Gain on sale of property and equipment ... oo 1,073 2,638 1,581 9,089
INTEIEST BXDBNSES L. ottt ettt {17,708) {20,172} 21,170 {150,004)
Loss on sale or disposal of property and equipment ............... (8,402) (10577} (22,115 {71173)
Impairment 1oss (NOte 15) .. o {10,809) (20,451} - {91,563)
Valuation loss on investments in securities. ........................ (215) (751) (485) (1,821)
Valuation loss on other long-term receivables ..................... {11) - (5,098) {93)
Equity in income {loss) of affiliates ... 284 (1339 97 2,406
Rebate onaircraft purchases ... - - 15,969 -
Gain on sale of investments insecurities ............. ..o 1,239 18632 881 10,496
Amortization of net transitional retirement
benefitobligation ... ... (6,713) (6,712) {6,712) {56,866)
Special retirermnent benefit expenses ... {600) {4,373) (1,858) {5,083)
Refurbishment expenses for return of lease aircraft ... {6,533) - - (55,341)
O T, Nt L 1,916 2,051 1,344 16,230
{(41,126) (36,369) (32,099) (348,378)
Income before income taxes and minority interests................ 51,064 52433 45,679 432,562
income taxes (Note 8):
U1 (=15 12,818 20,935 34592 108,581
Deferred . e 4,552 555 (16,960 38,560
17,370 26,890 17,632 147,141
Income before minority interests ... 33,694 25543 28,047 285,421
Minority Interasts ... .. . .. .ot 1,036 (1179 1,077 8,776
NetINCOME . ¥ 32,658 ¥ 26722 ¥ 26970 $ 276,645
5. dollars
Yen {Note 3)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Netincome pershare (Note 2{m)) ..o ¥16.77 ¥15.64 ¥17.26 50.142
Net income per share assuming full dilution (Note 2(m)) ............ - 15.64 15.37 -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial staternents.




Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
All Nippon Airways Co, Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Yen (Millions)
Shareholders’ equity Yalugtion, transtation adjustments and others
Net Total
uvealized  Deferred Fareign valuation, Minority
Comman Capital Retained  Less treasury Total holding gainon currency  translaugn  interests in
stock surplus eamnings common  shareholders’  gainen hedging  translaton  sdjusiments consolidsted Total
{Note 10} {Note 10 (Nate 10} stock, at cost equity securities instruments adjustments  and others  subsidiaries  net assets
Balance at March 31, 2004 ... ¥ 85767 ¥ 53,114 ¥ 8882 ¥ (790) ¥147873 ¥ 4040 ¥(1,927) ¥ 2113 ¥ 85910 ¥1589%6
Conversion of convertible bonds... 4,733 4,733 9466 9466
Issuance of stock by execution
of stock acquisition rights 15,791 15,791 31,582 31,582
Cash dividends paid (4,6i1) (4611) 4611)
Netincome ... 26,970 26670 26,970
Purchase of treasury stock .. (333) (333) (333
Disposition of treasury stock.. 37 266 303 303
Changes in scope of
consclidation and application
of the equity method...... .. (19) (16) (16}
Net changes of items other
than shareholders’ equity
during the period 580 255 835 1,307 2,142
Total changes during the pericd.. 20,525 20,562 22343 67) 63,363 580 255 835 1,307 65,505
Balance at March 31, 2005 ...... 107,292 73,676 31,225 (857) 211,336 4620 (1672) 2,948 10,217 224,501
Issuance of stock by execution
of stock acquisition rights ... 4,208 4,208 8415 23416
Issuance of stock by public
offering and allocation to
LRI PAMTY oot senssenees 48,500 48,130 96,630 96,630
Cash dividends paid . (5.010) (5010 (5,010}
Netincome ... 26,722 26,722 26,722
Purchase of treasury stock . (260) (260) {260}
Disposition of treasury stock... 410) 89 (321 (3213
Changes in scope of
consolidation and application
of the equity method... . (240) (240) 240}
Net changes of items other
than shareholders’ equity
during the periog ... 4,790 1,296 5,086 (3.085) 3.00
Total changes during the pericd........ 52,709 51829 21472 (171) 125639 4,790 1,256 6086 {3,085 128940
Balance at March 31, 2006 . 160,001 125605 52,697 (1,028) 337275 9410 (376 9,034 7132 353441
Cash dividends paid ... (5.839) (5,839) {5.839)
Netincome ... 32,658 32,658 32,658
Purchase of treasury stoc (311) (311) 31
Dispcsition of treasury stoc 134 614 748 748
Changes in scope of
censclidation and application
cf the equity method.....eee 14 14 14
Net changes of items other
than shareholders' equity
during the period 1,475 ¥23155 14 24,644 557 25,20
Total changes during the period........ - 134 26,833 303 27,270 1,475 23,155 14 24,644 557 52471
Balance at March 31, 2007 ... . ¥160,00) ¥125,739 ¥79,530 ¥ (725) ¥364,545 ¥10,885 ¥23,155 ¥ (362) V¥33678B Y 7689 ¥405912
U.5. dollars {Thousands) (Note 3)
Shateholders equity Valuauon, translation adjustments and others
MNet Total
unralized  Deferred Foreign valuat.on, Kinofity
Commaon Capital Retained Lessireasury  Total helding gain on curency  Uranslaton  antarests in
stock surplus earnings common shareholders’ gainon hedging  translation adjusiments consolidated Tozal
{Note 10} (Note 10 (Note 10)  stock,atcosi equky securities instruments adjustmerts andcthers subsidiaries  netassets
Balance at March 31, 2006 . $1,355,366 51063998 5446396 S(8708) 52857052 S79.712 ${3,185) § 76527 S60415 $2,993944
Cash dividends paid (49,462) (49,462) (49,462)
Netincome ... 276,645 276,645 276,645
Purchase of treasury stock... (2,634} (2,634) {2,634)
Disposition of treasury stock.. 1,135 5,201 6,336 6,336
Changes in scope of
consclidation and application
of the equity method......cene g 119 19
Net changes of iterns other
than shareholders' equity
during the peniod ... 12,495 $196,145 119 208,759 4,718 213,477
Total changes during the period....... - 1,135 227,302 2,567 231,004 12,495 196,145 119 208,759 4,718 444,481
Balance at March 31, 2007 ... $1,355,366 51,065,133 $673,698 5$(6,141) $3,088,056 $92,207 5$196,145 5{3,066) $285,286 565,133 $3,438,475

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

All Nippon Airways Co, Lt

d. and its consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

U.S. dollars
{Thousands)
Yen {Millions) (Note 3)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests .................... ¥ 51,064 ¥ 52433 ¥ 45679 $ 432,562
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes and
minarity interests to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ........ .. ... .. i i 88,610 76,201 70,446 750,614
INEAIIMIENT IOSS e et 10,809 20,451 - 91,563
Loss on disposal and sale of property and equipment ................ 7,533 7,939 20,534 63,812
Increase (decrease} in allowance for doubtful accounts. ........... ... 273 {4,403) 4537 2,313
Increase {decrease) in accrued employees’ retiremnent benefits. . ... ... 5,241 (408) 2,228 44,396
N ErESL EXPENSES L ittt et 17,708 20172 21,117 150,004
Interest and dividend income ... .. (5.353) (4,681} (5418} (45,345}
EXCNaNGE QAN L. e (348) 81} (546) (2,948}
Rebate on purchasing aircraft ... - - {15,969) -
{Increase} decrease in accountsreceivable ... (10,620) 520 {11,782} (89,962}
(Increase) decrease in other currentassets ..o (1,165} 3,007 (468} (9,869}
Increase in accounts and notes payable —trade .................. L. 28,389 28417 17,958 240,483
OREr, ML (233) (3,673) 3629 (1,973)
Cash generated from operations .. ... oo 191,908 195,884 151,845 1,625,650
interest and dividends received ... 5,390 4726 5,468 45,659
INEEreST PAIT ... o {17,787) (20,511) {21,166} (150,673)
Income taxes paid ... .. {20,197) (47,201) (3,336) (171,089)
Receipt of rebate on purchasing aircraft............ . - - 15,569 -
L0 T T (600) 4373) 190 (5,083)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...................... 158,714 128,525 149,070 1,344,464
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for purchase of property and equipment ...................... (236,750) (218,278) (199,650) (2,005,506)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment .................. ... 104,900 125,392 39,505 888,607
Payment for purchase of intangible assets ......................... ... (15,176) (17,302) (10,530) (128,556)
Payment for purchase of marketable securities ... (5,995) - - (50,784}
Proceeds from redemption of marketable securities ... 21,410 - - 181,364
Proceeds from sale of investments in securities ......................... 1,015 11,282 5,093 8,598
Payment of advances ... .. (2,416) (1,528) (635) (20,466)
Proceeds from collection of advances ... oo 5.606 49,574 2,524 47,488
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary’s stock with changes
in scope of consolidation. .............. o 1,375 12,219 - 11,648
Other, ML (2,267} (7,808) (5,554) (19,204}
Net cash used in investing activities ............................ {128,298} (46,449) (169,247) (1,086,811)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in short-term 10ans, net .. ... (5,190} (7,355) {(9,038) (43,964)
Proceeds from long-termdebt .. .. ... .. 97,158 84,278 126,028 823,024
Repayment of long-termdebt ... o {113,809} (163,141) (74,300 (364,075)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds ... e - 34,813 19,695 -
Repaymentof bonds ... ... s (75,000) (40,000) (109,975) {635,324)
Payment for dividends ... ..o s (5,839) (5,010) (4611 (49,462)
Proceeds from issuance of stock by public offering
and allocation T third Party. ..o e - 95,865 - -
Oher, Mt 1,783 {2,587) 401 15,104
Net cash used in financing activities ............................ (100,897} (3,137 {51,600) {854,687)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .......... (59) 517 420 {500)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents .................... (70,540) 79,456 (71,357} {597,544)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year ................. ... ... 242,785 163,155 234524 2,056,629
Net increase (decrease) resulting from
changes in scope of consolidation ... 29 174 {12} 246
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year (Nete 14) ............... ... ... ¥172,274 ¥ 242,785 ¥ 163,155 5 1,459,331

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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!, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
All Nippon Airways Co, Ltd. and its consclidated subsidiaries

Basis of presenting consolidated financial statements

The accompanying consclidated financial statements of

All Nippon Airways Co,, Lid. (the "Company”) and its consolidated
subsidiaries are prepared on the basis of accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain
respects as o application and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled
from the consolidated financial siatements prepared by the
Company as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of

Japan. In preparing the accompanying financial statements,
ceriain reclassifications have been made to the financial
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a
form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition,
the notes to the consolidated financial statemenis include
information which is not required under accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in Japan but is presented
herein as additional information,

(a)

G

Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation and accounting for investments

in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and all of its significant subsidiaries (95 subsidiaries
for 2007, 98 subsidiaries for 2006 and 95 subsidiaries for 2005).

All significant imercbmpany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Investments in certain subsidiaries and significant affiliates
{25 companies for 2007, 23 companies for 2006 and 22 companies
for 2005) are accounted for by the equity method of accounting.
The difference between the cost and the underlying net equity
in the net assets at dates of acquisition of consolidated
subsidiaries and companies accounted for by the equity method
of accounting is amortized using the straight-line method over a
period of five years.

Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates not
accounted for by the equity method of accounting (52 companies
for 2007, 49 companies for 2006 and 54 companies for 2005) are
stated at cost. The equity in undistributed earnings of these
companies was not significant,

During 2007 and 2005, subsidiaries which were not consolidated
in prior years were included in consolidation. The effect of
changes in the scope of consolidation has been credited or
charged to retained earmings {deficit) and the consolidated
financial statements for prior years have not been restated.

Certain foreign subsidiaries have fiscal years ending on
December 31 and necessary adjustments for significant
transactions, if any, are made on consolidation.

Deferred tax accounting

Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financiat statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their tax bases and operating losses and
tax credits carried forward. Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected 1o apply to taxable

(c}

(d

income in the years in which the temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or setiled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is charged to
operaticns in the period that includes the enactment date.
See Note 8.

Foreign currency translation

The balance sheet accounts of foreign consolidated subsidiaries
are translated into yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date, except for components of shareholders’
equity which are wranslated at historic exchange rates. Revenues
and expenses are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing
when such transactions are made. Resulting translation
differences are recorded in minority interests and in foreign
currency translation adjustments under the net assets section
of the consolidated balance sheets.

Foreign currency payables and receivables are principally
translated at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet
date, except payables and receivables hedged by qualified
forward exchange contracts.

Marketable securities and investment securities

The accounting standard for financial instruments requires that
securities be classified into three categories: trading, held-to-
maturity or other securities. Under the standard, trading securities
are carried at fair value and held-to-maturity securities are carried
at amortized cost. Marketable securities classified as other securities
are carried at fair value with changes in unrealized holding gains
or losses, net of the applicable income taxes, included directly

in net assets. Nen-marketable securities classified as other
securities are carried at cost. Cost of securities sold is determined
by the moving average method. See Note 4.
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(e)

{h)

Derivatives

The Company and its subsidiaries use derivatives, such as
forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and
commedity options and swaps, t¢ limit their exposure to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
commaodity prices. The Company and its subsidiaries do not
use derivatives for trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value with
changes in unrealized gains or losses charged or credited to
operaticns, except for those which meet the criteria for deferral
hedge accounting under which an unrealized gain or loss is
deferred as an asset or a liability. Receivables and payables hedged
by qualified forward exchange contracts are translated at the
corresponding foreign exchange contract rates. Interest rate swaps
that gualify for hedge accounting are not measured at fair value,
but the differential paid or received under the swap agreements
is recognized and included in interest expenses or income,

Allowance for doubtful receivables

A general provision is made for doubtful receivables based on
past experience. Provisions are also made against specific
receivables as and when required.

Inventories
Inventories include aircraft spare parts, supplies and stock in
trade of consclidated subsidiaries.

These are stated at cost. Cost is determined by the moving
average method for aircraft spare parts and the first-in, first-out
method for miscellaneous supplies.

Property and equipment and depreciation
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation of property and equipment is
computed based on estimated useful lives by the following
methods:
Boeing 747-400s, Boeing 7775,
Boeing 7675, Boeing 737s, Airbus A320s

and Airbus A321s........LL Straight-line method
Other flight equipment .......... Declining balance method
Buildings..................... Straight-line method
Other ground property

and equipment ................. Declining balance method

The Company and certain subsidiaries employ principally the
following useful lives, based upon the Company's estimated
durability of such aircraft:

International type equipment .............. 20years

Domestic type equipment.................. 17 years

tn addition, effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted new
estimated useful lives to certain aircraft which the Company
determined to sell in the near future. As a result of the adoption
of these new useful lives, depreciation decreased operating
income and income before income taxes and minority interests
by ¥6,410 million ($54,299 thousand) for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2007 as compared with the corresponding amount
under the previous method.

Majer additicns and improvements are capitalized at cost.
Maintenance and repairs, including minor renewals and
improvemnents, are charged to income as incurred.

Intangible assets and amortization

Intangible assets included in other assets are amortized by the
straighi-line method. Cost of software purchased for internal use
is amaortized by the straight-line method over five years, the
estimated useful life of purchased software.

Retirement benefits

The retirement benefit plan of the Company and certain
subsidiaries covers substantially all employees other than directors,
officers and corporate auditors. Under the terms of this plan,
eligible emplayees are entitled, upon mandatory retirement or
earlier voluntary severance, to lump-sum payments or annuity
payments based on their compensation at the time of leaving
and years of service with the Company and subsidiaries,

The Company and certain significant domestic subsidiaries
have trustee employee pension funds to provide coverage for
part of the lump-sum benefits or annuity payments.

Several subsidiaries have tax-qualified pension plans which
cover all or part of the lump-sum benefits.

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries adopt
defined contribution pension plans as well as defined benefit
pension plans.

Accrued retirement benefits for employees at the balance
sheet date are provided mainly at an amount calculated based
on the retirement benefit obligation and the fair market value of
the pension plan assets as of the balance sheet date, as adjusted
for unrecognized net retirement benefit obligation at transition,
unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and unrecognized prior
service cost. The retirement benefit obligation is attributed to
each period by the straight-line method over the estimated
service years of eligible employees. The net retirement benefit
obligation at transition is being amortized principally over a
pericd of fifteen years by the straight-line method. Actuarial
gains and losses are amortized in the year fallowing the year in
which the gain or loss is recognized primarily by the straight-line
method over periods {principally eight years through eighteen
years) which are shorter than the average remaining service years
of employees. Prior service cost is being amortized as incurred by
the straight-line method over periods {principally eight years
through eighteen years} which are shorter than the average
remaining service years of employees. See Note 7.

The assumpticns used in accounting for the above plans as of
March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Discountrate..........

2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Expected return on

planassets ........... 0.85%-~5.5%

0.85%~5.5% 0.85%~5.5%




(k) Revenue recognition
Passenger revenues, cargo and other operating revenues are
recorded when services are rendered.

(i)  Appropriation of retained earnings
Under the Corporation Law of Japan (the "Law”), the appropriation
of unappropriated retained earings of the Company with respect
to a financial period is made by resolution of the Company's
shareholders at a general meeting 1o be held subsequent to the
close of the Anancial period and the accounts for that period do
not therefore reflect such appropriation. See Note 10.

{m) Net income per share
The computation of net income per share of common stock is
based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during each year.

As a result of revision of “Implementation Guidelines for
Accounting Standards for Net Income per Share” (Financial
Accounting Standard Implementation Guidelines No. 4 issued by
the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on January 31, 2006),
the amount of deferred gain on hedging instruments, net of tax,
was included in the net assets as of March 31, 2007 attributable
{C common stock.

The net assets per share as of March 31, 2007 would have
been ¥192.54 ($1.63) if the same calculation method in the
previous year had been applied.

Leases

Finance lease transactions other than those that are expecied to
transfer ownership of the assets to the lessee are accounted for
as operating leases. See Note 9.

(m

Stock issuance costs
Stock issuance costs are principally capitalized and amortized
over a pericd of three years.

Bond issuance costs
Bond issuance costs are principally capitalized and amortized
over a period of three years.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the staterments of cash flows, cash and short-
term, highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months
or less are treated as cash equivalents. See Note 14,

{r} Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2006 and 2005
financial information in the accompanying financial statements
to conform with the 2007 presentation.

{s} Impairment loss on fixed assets

{t)

=

Effective April 1, 2005, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries
and affiliates applied “Accounting Standards for Impairment of
Fixed Assets” ("Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting

. Standards for Impairment of Fixed Assets” issued by the Business

Accounting Council of Japan on August 9, 2002) and the
*Implementation Guidelines for Accounting Standards for
impairment of Fixed Assets” (Financial Accounting Standard
Implementation Guidelines No. 6 issued by the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan on Cctober 31, 2003). As a result,
impairment loss decreased income before income taxes and
minority interests by ¥20,451 million for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2006 and by ¥10,809 millicn {($91,563 thousand) for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Accumulated impairment
losses are deducted directly from the balances of the related
fixed assets In accordance with the revised Regulations
Concerning Consolidated Financial Statements. See Note 15,

Presentation of net assets in the balance sheet

Effective the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company and

its domestic subsidiaries and affiliates applied "Accounting

Standards for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet”

("Accounting Standards No. 5 for Presentation of Net Assets in

the Balance Sheet” issued by the Accounting Standards Board o
of Japan on December 8, 2005) and the “Implementation g
Guidelines for Accounting Standards for Presentation of Net X
Assets in the Balance Sheet” (Financial Accounting Standard %
Implementation Guidelines No. 8 issued by the Accounting &
Standards Board of Japan on December 9, 2005). In addition,
preparation of a consolidated statement of changes in net assets
has been required instead of a consolidated statement of
shareholders’ equity effective the year ended March 31, 2007.

In this connection, the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2006 and the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity for
the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 have been restated to
conform to the presentation and disclosure of the consolidated
financial statemenits as of and for the year ended March 21, 2007.

Al Mippon Arways Co, Ltd.

Business combination and divestitures

Effective the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company and

its domestic subsidiaries and affiliates applied "Accounting
Standards for Business Combinations” (*Accounting Standards
for Business Combination” issued by the Business Accounting
Council of Japan on October 31, 2003}, "Accounting Standards
for Business Divestitures” {"Accounting Standards No, 7 for
Business Divestitures” issued by the Accounting Standards Board
of Japan on December 27, 2005) and the “Implementation
Guidelines for Accounting Standards for Business Combination
and Divestitures” (Financial Accounting Standard Implementation
Guidelines No. 10 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of
Japan on December 22, 2006).
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3. Financial statements translation

The consolidated financial statements presented herein are
expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader,
have been translated into United States dollars at the rate of

¥118.05=U551, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on at such rate,

the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on March 30, 2007, This
translation should not be construed as a representatian that the
amounts shown could be converted into United States dollars

4. Marketable securities and investments in securities

Market value information at March 31, 2007 and 2006 is summarized as follows:

Held-to-maturity securities having market value are as follows:

U.S. dollars
Yen (Millions) (Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Gross unrealized gain:
€01 ¥3 ¥38 $25
Marketvalue ... o 3 38 25
0 Q 0
Gross unrealized loss;
L0 L 5 - 42
Market value . .. 5 - 42
(0) - {0}
Netunrealized Qain . ¥0 ¥0 $0
Other securities having market value are as follows:
US. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Gross unrealized gain:
L ¥14,857 ¥14,369 $125,853
Marketvalue ... 33,826 © 30,898 286,539
18,969 16,529 160,686
Gross unrealized loss:
1601 3,392 446 28,734
Marketvalue 3,227 405 27,336
(165} (41) (1,398)
Netunrealized gain ... o ¥18,804 ¥16,488 $159,288
Other securities sold in the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:
U5 dellars
Yen (Millions) (Thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Proceeds . ... ¥464 ¥228 ¥1,778 53,93
Gainonsale .. 323 8 878 2,736
Lossonsale .. ... oo 1 - 1,056 8




Breakdown of securities not having market value at March 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

U.S. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Held-to-maturity Bongds ... e ¥ - ¥15416 $ -
Other securities ....................... P 22415 31,449 189,877
¥22,415 ¥46,865 $189,877

The redemption schedule of other securities and held-to-maturity debt securities as of March 31, 2007 and 2006 is summarized

as follows:
U.5. dollars
Yen (Millions) (Thousands}
2007 2006 2007
Bonds:
WIEIN T Yar ¥5 ¥23415 $ 42
Over 1yearto5years ... B 38 25
Orthers:
WITHIN T YA L 29 1,230 246
Total:
WIERIN T YA ¥34 ¥24,645 $288
3 38 25

OVEr 1 y¥RaNTO S YRAIS ...t

5. Investments in and advances to non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates

Investments in and advances to non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Financial Section

W
=

U.5. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
investments in capital Stock ... ¥8,916 ¥7,263 $75,527
AVANCES. 330 361 2,795
¥4 246 ¥7654 §78,323
6. Short-term loans and long-term debt
Short-term loans at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:
LS. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Short-term Bank l0ans .. ¥ 3,500 ¥ 8,690 S 29,648
Current portion of long-term loans ....... R 110,224 95,748 933,706
Current portion of bonds and notes ...... ... T 45,000 45,000 381,194
¥158,724 ¥149,438 $1,344,549

All Nippon Airways Co, Lid.
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The interest rates on the short-term loans were between 0.08% and 1.66% per annum in 2007 and between 0.08% and 1.63% per annum
in 2006.
Long-term debt at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

US. dollars
Yen idillions) {Thousands}
2007 2006 2007
Bonds and notes:
3075% notes due 2007 . ¥ 35,000 ¥ 35000 $ 296,485
2.75% notes due 2000 L 20,000 20,000 169,420
3 2% N0tes AUE 20017 20,000 20,000 169,420
29% notesdue 2008 (1) . - 20,000 -
3% notes AU 2007 .. 10,000 10,000 84,710
205% notesdue 2006 L - 15,000 -
30 notes due 201l 10,000 10,000 84,710
3% notesdue 20010 L 10,000 10,000 84,710
1.33% notes due 2008 ... 20,000 20,000 169,420
1.5% notes due 2008 (K1) oo . - 10,000 -
1.27% notesdue 2009 ... ..., D 10,000 10,000 84,710
1.7% notes due 2011 10,000 10,000 84,710
08% notes due 20068 . - 30,000 -
227% Nnotes Aue 2014 10,000 10,000 84,710
T44% notes due 2011 o 10,000 10,000 84,710
209%notes due 2014 ... e 10,000 10,000 84,710
1.97% Notes dUE 2015 L. 15,000 15,000 127,065
086% notes due 2008 .. . 20,000 20,000 169,420
210,000 285,000 1,778,907
Loans, principally from banks:
Secured, bearing interest from 0.85% to 6.80% in 2007 and
0.85% to 6.90% in 2006, maturing in installments through 2022 ... ............. 369,259 338,078 3,127,988
Unsecured, bearing interest from 0.93% to ©.90% in 2007 and
0.64% to 6.10% in 2006, maturing in installments through 2016 ... .. 166,687 214,549 1,412,003
535,946 552,627 4,539,992
745,946 837,627 6,318,899
[ W] =] 0o o o L 155,224 140,748 1,314,900
¥590,722 ¥696,879 $5,003,998

(*1} Decreased by debt assumption contracts

As is customary in Japan, short-term and long-term bank loans
are made under general agreements which provide that security
and guarantees for future and present indebtedness will be
given upon request of the bank, and that the bank shall have the
right, as the obligation hecomes dug, or in the event of default
and certain other specified events, to offset cash deposits against
such obligations due to the bank.

Certain bonds and notes and foreign currency loans are
guaranteed by domestic and foreign banks.

The Company has concluded a commitment line agreement
with a syndicate of 15 major Japanese banks amounting to
¥100,000 million (5847099 thousand) to reduce its surplus
balance of funds and to improve its consolidated balance sheet.
There were no loans payable outstanding at March 31, 2007
under this agreement.




The following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term and long-term debt at March 31, 2007:

US. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
Property and equipment, at net book value:
B g QU DI N L e ¥545,601 $4,621,779
Ground property and eQUIDITIENT ... o e 44,449 418,882
¥595,050 $5,040,661
The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2067 are as follows:
U5 dellars
Year ending March 31, Yen {Millions) {Thousands)
2008, e ¥155,224 $1,314,900
20000 116,584 987,582
2000 93,426 791,410
2000 aNd NI T Lo 380,712 3,225,006
¥745,946 56,318,899
7. Retirement benefit plans
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have The Company applied for an exemption from the payment
defined benefit plans, i.e., welfare pension fund plans, tax of the benefits related to past employee services and received
qualified pension plans and lump-sum payment plans, covering approvals from the Minister of Health, Labour and Welfare on c
substantially all employees who are entitled to lump-sum or October 1, 2004, and a domestic consolidated subsidiary applied §
annuity payments, the amounts of which are determined by for an exernption from the payment of the benefits related to z
[=
reference to their basic rates of pay, length of service and the past employee services and received approval from the Minister 2
conditions under which termination occurs. of Health, Labour and Welfare on May 1, 2005.
53
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The following table sets out the funded and accrued status of the plans and the amounts recegnized in the consolidated balance sheets
as of March 31, 2007 and 2006 for the Company and consolidated subsidiaries’ defined benefit plans:

U.S. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007

Retirement benefit obligation ... .. ¥(278,278} ¥(269,868) $(2,357,289)
Plam assets atfair value ... .. 118,190 110,939 1,001,186
Unfunded retirement benefit obligation ... ... ... ... ... (160,088) (158,929} {(1,356,103)
Unrecognized net transitional retirement benefit obligation ..................... .. 53,698 60430 454,875
Unrecognized actuarial loss . ... 23,826 24,497 201,830
Unrecognized prior Service COSt ... (29,014) (32,361) (245,778)
(111,578) (106,363} (945,176)

Prenaid pension COST .. ... 1,028 1,014 8,708
Accrued employees' retirement benefits ... ¥(112,606) ¥(107,377) $ (953,884)

The government sponsored portion of the benefits under the welfare pension fund plans has been included in the amounts shown in the

above table.

The components of retirement benefit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

U.S. dollars
Yen {Millions) (Thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2007

SBIVICE COB L+t vttt vttt et e e ¥10,953 ¥12,225 ¥11,947 S 92,782
MBSt COS . 6,426 6,250 6,167 54,435
Expected return ON RIaN assets ... o {4,369) (4,952 (3,671) (37,.010)
Amortization of net transitional retirement benefit obligation ... .. 6,713 5,712 6,712 56,866
Amortization of actuarial loss ... 3,650 4,071 3213 30,919
Amortization of prior service Cost .. ... (3,739 (3715} (3,090 {31,673)
Net periodic pension and severance cost ...........oooeiivivnain.. ¥19,634 ¥20,591 ¥21,278 $166,319

Besides the above net periodic pension and severance cost,

the costs for other retirement and pension plans such as a
defined contribution plan and for supplemental retirement
benefit were ¥608 million (55,150 thousand) and ¥600 million

($5,083 thousand), respectively, for the year ended March 31,
2007, ¥568 million and ¥4,373 million, respectively, for the year
ended March 31, 2006 and ¥608 million and ¥1,858 million,
respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2005.




8. Income taxes

The Company is subject 1o a number of taxes on income

The Company adopted the consolidated taxation system

(corporation tax, inhabitants taxes and enterprise tax) which in effective from the year ended March 31, 2003. For censolidated
aggregate resulted in & normal statutory tax rate of 40.16% in taxation system purposes, the Company has consclidated all
2007 and 2006, qualified, wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries.

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to a significant portion of the deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2007 and
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2006 is as follows:
U.s. dollars
Yen (Millions) (Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued employees’retirement benefits. ... ¥ 44,543 Y 42,209 $377.323
Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments................ ..o - 11,780 -
ACCIUE BXPENSES 7,203 5751 61,017

Intercompany profits on inventories and property and equipment ... 5428 5317 45,981
T DA NI 0SS . L e 3,671 3908 31,097
Tax loss carry-forward ... o 2,306 2,725 19,534
Valuation loss on investments in securities. ... 1,048 - 8,878
ACCIUE BNTIPIISE TAXES . ottt ettt e e e 629 1,162 5,328
Allowance for doubtful accounts ... 608 - 5,150
O RET L 12,536 11,157 106,192
Total gross defermred tax 855815 ..o i 77,972 84,003 660,500
Less valuation allowanCe . . i (8,611) (9,024) (72,944}
Total net deferred 1ax 55815 ..o 69,361 74579 587,556

Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized helding gain on securities. ... o i {7,641) (6,754) (64,727)
Special deprecialion reserve. .. ... . {2,729) {984) (23,117)
T (15,521) (2,718) (131,478)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ... (25,891) (10454) (219,322}
Netdeferred 1ax assels ... o ¥ 43,470 ¥ 64,525 $ 368,234

A reconciliation of the difference between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2007

is as follows:

B 02 (01 (o T ' = (P

Reconciliation:

Entertainment expenses not qualifying for deduction .. .
INRAD NS TaX PO AP VY . i ettt
Change in valuation allowance and related adjustments ... i
L0 1 3T B U

B G tve MO LY (AL .o e e e

40.16%

2.01
0.45
(2.80)
{5.80)

3402%

All Nippon Airways Co, Ld
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A reconciliation of the difference between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2006

is as follows:

STBTULONY LXK FALE o ittt e e

Reconciliation:

Entertainment expenses nat qualifying for deduction ...
Inhabitants tax per Capila vy oo
Change in valuation allowance and related adjustments ..
L3 = O U

9, Leases

(@) Finance leases

Finance lease transactions other than those that are expected to transfer ownership of the assets ta the lessee are accounted for as operating
leases. Information on finance leases which are not recorded as assets and liabilities in the balance sheets is summarized below.
Estimated acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation and net book value of leased assets at March 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

US. dollars
Yen (Millions) (Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Aircraft:
Estimated acquisition COSt ... .. . ¥223,363 ¥278,217 $1,892,105
Estimated amount of accumulated depreciation. ... 138,153 174,610 1,170,292
Estimated netbookvalue ... . e 85,210 103,607 721,813
Others:
Estimated acquisition COSt . ... .. . 15,365 11,688 130,156
Estimated amount of accumulated depreciation ................. ... 6,954 6,449 58,907
Estimated net book value ... . 8,411 5,239 71,249
Total:
Estimated acqUISItION COST ... . 238,728 289,905 2,022,261
Estimated amount of accumulated depreciation .. ............ ... 145,107 181,059 1,229,199
Estimated netbookvalue ... .. ¥ 93,621 ¥108,846 S 793,062
Cutstanding finance lease obligations at March 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
US. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Current portion of finance lease obligations ... ¥23,169 ¥ 26879 $196,264
Long-term finance lease obligations .. ................ o 74,341 87,143 629,741
¥97,510 ¥114,022 $826,005




Estimated amount of depreciation and finance charges for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

US. dollars
Yen (Millions) ({Thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Estimated amount of depreciation
by the straight-line method aver the lease period. ................ ¥26,737 ¥31,476 ¥33,616 $226,488
EStimated INTEreST COSE ...\ttt et 2,099 3216 3,967 17,780

Annual lease expenses charged to income were ¥30,048 million ($254,536 thousand), ¥35,735 million and ¥39,444 million for the years
ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

{b) Operating leases
The rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining nen-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year
at March 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

u.S. dellars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2007
Current portion of operating lease obligations ........ ... ¥ 32,824 ¥ 31,791 5 278,052
Long-term operating lease cbligations ............. . 173,450 121,934 1,469,292
¥206,274 ¥153,725 $1,747,344
Note: No impairment loss was allocaled o leased assets.
10. Supplementary information for consolidated statements of changes in net assets
Supplementary inforrmation for consolidated statements of changes in net assets at March 31, 2007 consisted of the following:
{a) Type and number of outstanding shares Number of shares
Balance at Increase in shares Decrease in shares Balance at
beginning of year during the year during the year end of year
Type of shares {Thousands) {Thousands) (Thousands) {Thousands)
{ssued stock:
Common stock. . o 1,949,059 - - 1,840,959
Total. 1,949,959 - - 1,549,959
Treasury stock:
Commonstaock (1, 2) .o 3,211 695 1,871 1,835
Total R 321 695 1,971 1,635

(*1) Treasury siock increased by 695 thousand shares due 1o the repurchase of shares less than one unit.
(*2) Tieasury stock decreased by 157 thousand shares due to the sale of shares less than ene unit and by 1,814 thousand shares due to the sale of shares by a consolidated company.

(b) Dividends
(1) Dividends paid to shareholders

Arnount Amount Amount Amount
Resolution Type of {Millions of  {Thousandsof  per share per share Shareholders’  Effective
Date of approval approved by shares Yen) US. dollars} {Yen) {Us dollarsy  cut-off date date
June 28, 2006 Annual general Common ¥5,839 549,462 ¥3.00 5003 March 31, June 29,

meeting of shareholders stock 2006 2006

Financial Section
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(2) Dividends with a shareholders’ cut-off date during the current fiscal year, ending March 31, 2008, but an effective date subseguent to the

current fiscal year

Amount
Resolution Type of {Millions of
Date of approval approved by shares Yen)

Amount Amount
{Thousands of per share per share Shareholders  Effective
U.S. dollars) Paid from {en) (US. dollars)  cut-off date date

June 25, 2007 Annual general Common ¥5,844

meeting of shareholders stock

549,504

Retained  ¥3.00 $0.03 March 31, June 26,
earnings 2007 2007

In accordance with the Law, the Company provides a legal
reserve which is included in retained earings. The Law provides
that an amount equal to at least 109% of the amounts 1o be
dishursed as distributions of earnings be appropriated 1o the
legal reserve until the total of the legal reserve and the additional
paid-in capital account equals 25% of the commoen stock
account. The Law provides that neither additional paid-in capital
nor the legal reserve is available for the payment of dividends,
but both may be used to reduce or eliminate a deficit by

resolution of the shareholders or may be transferred to common
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The Law also
provides that, if the total amount of additional paid-in capital and
the legal reserve exceeds 25% of the amount of common stock,
the excess may be distributed to the shareholders either as a
return of capital or as dividends subject to the approval of the
shareholders. Under the Law, however, such distributions can be
made at anytime by resolution of the shareholders or by the
Board of Direciors if certain conditions are met.

11. Commitments and contingent liabilities

At March 31, 2007, commitments outstanding for the acquisition
or construction of property and equipment amounted to
¥1,135,761 million {58,621,017 thousand}.

The Company and consolidated subsidiaries were contingently
liable as guarantor of bonds with debt assumption contracts and

loans, principally to affiliates, amounting to ¥30,172 million
{255,587 thousand) at March 31, 2007.

The Company is liable for defects in the amount of ¥1,282
millicn (510,860 thousand) at March 31, 2007

o3

All Mippon Airways Co., Ltd,

12. Derivatives and hedging activities

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries operate internationally
and are exposed to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and commodity prices of fuel. In order to manage
these risks, the Company and its subsidiaries utilize forward
exchange contracts to hedge certain foreign currency transactions
related to purchase commitments, principally of flight equipment,
and foreign currency receivables and payables. Also, the Company
and its subsidiaries utilize interest rate swaps to minimize the
impact of interest rate fluctuations related to their outstanding
debt. In addition, the Company also enters into a variety of swaps
and options in its management of risk exposure related 1o the
ccmmedity prices of fuel. The Company and its subsidiaries do
not use derivatives for trading purposes.

The Company has developed internal hedging guidelines
to control various aspects of derivative transactions, including
authorization levels and transaction volumes, The Company

enters into derivative transactions in accordance with these
internal guidelings, Derivative and hedging transactions initiated
by respective operational departments have been examined by
the accounting department and these transactions, including
their measures and ratios, have been monitored by management
generzlly on a monthly basis. Assessment of hedge effectiveness
is examined at inception and, on an ongoing basis, periodically.
The consolidated subsidiaries have adopted the same procedures
for hedging activities as the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries are also exposed to credit-
related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties
to derivative financial instruments, but it is not expected that any
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations, because most of
the counterparties are internationally recognized financial
institutions.




13. Segment information

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct consolidated subsidiaries and, accardingly, are included in "Cther
operations in air transportation, travel services, hotel operations businesses” in the following industry segment information.

and other businesses. Businesses other than air transportation, Other segment information of the Company and its

travel services and hotel operations are insignificant to the subsidiaries, such as geographical breakdown of sales and assets,
consolidated results of operations of the Company and its is not disclosed because of its insignificance.

Segment information for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Yen (Millions)
Air Travel Hotel Other Intercompany
As of and for the year ended tarch 31, 2007 ransportation services operations businesses Tetal eliminations  Consolidated
Operating revenues . ................ ¥1,134,250 ¥186,872 ¥ 58,022 ¥110,514 ¥1,489,658 ¥ - ¥1,489,658
Intra-group sales and transfers ...... 114,532 21,154 8,615 86,381 230,682 (230,682) -
Total ... 1,248,782 208,026 66,637 196,895 1,720,340 (230,682) 1,489,658
Operating expenses ................. 1,169,061 206,106 61,415 191,281 1,627,863 (230,395) 1,397,468
Operatingincome................... ¥ 79721 ¥ 1,920 ¥ 5222 ¥ 5614 ¥ 92477 ¥ {287) ¥ 92,190
Air Travel Hotel Othey Intercompany
transportation services operations businesses Total eliminations  Consolidated
Identifiable assets ................... ¥1,447,781 ¥ 51,870 ¥143,179 ¥116,548  ¥1,759,378  ¥(157,287) ¥1,602,091
Depreciation and amortization ...... 81,465 1,241 3,825 2,079 88,610 - 88,610
Impairment1oss ... 10,704 - - 105 10,809 - 10,809
Capital expenditure ................. 242,572 2,432 2,899 4,357 252,260 (334) 251,926
U.S. dollars {Thousands) —
Alr Travel Hotel Other Intereompany g
As of and for the year endect March 31, 2007 transportation services operations businesses Total eliminations  Consolidated k-
Operating revenuss ................. $ 9,608,217 $1,582,990 5 491503 $ 936,163 $12,618,873 § - 512,618,873 3
Intra-group sales and transfers. . ... 970,199 179,195 72,978 731,732 1,954,104 (1,954,104} - 2
Total........... B 10,578,416 1,762,185 564,481 1,667,895 14,572,977 (1,954,104) 12,618,873
Operating expenses ................. 9,903,100 1,745,921 520,246 1,620,339 13,789,606 (1,951,673) 11,837,933
Operating income...... e 5 675316 $ 16264 5 44235 § 47556 S5 783371 § (2,431 § 780,940
Air Travel Hotel Other Intercompany i
transportation Services operations businesses Total eliminations  Consclidated 2
Identifiable assets................. .. $12,264,134 $ 439,390 $1,212,867 S 987277 $14,903,668 $(1,332,376) $13,571,292 g
Depreciation and amaortization. ... .. 690,089 10,512 32,402 17,611 750,614 - 750,614 g
Impairment 19ss ... 90,673 - - 890 91,563 - 91,563 §
Capital expenditure ................. 2,054,824 20,602 24,557 36,908 2,136,891 (2,829) 2,134,062 -
Yen (Millions}
Air Travel Hotel Other Intercompany
As of and for the year ended March 31, 2006 transportation services operations businesses Total eliminations  Consolidated
Operating revenues ................. ¥1,022,090 ¥180,189 ¥57.695 ¥108,318 ¥1,368,792 ¥ - ¥1,368,792
Intra-group sales and transfers ...... 110,574 19,303 8,681 82,065 220653 (220653) -
Total ... 1,132,664 199,492 66,376 190,913 1,589,445 (220,653} 1,368,792
Operating expenses ................. 1,058,551 196,274 61,741 184,123 1,500,689 (220,699) 1,279,950
Operating income................... ¥ 74113 ¥ 3218 ¥ 4635 ¥ 6,790 ¥ 88756 ¥ 46 ¥ 88302
Air Travel Hotel Other Intercompany
transportation services operations businesses Total eliminations  Consclidared
Identifiable assets ................. . ¥1,476,599 ¥50,120 ¥150,367 ¥131675 ¥1,808,767 ¥(141,918) ¥1,666,843
Depreciation and amortization ... .. 67,984 1,046 3822 3,349 76,207 - 76,201
Impairmentloss ..................... 1,663 - 9,083 9,705 20,451 - 20,451

Capital expenditure ................. 189,501 1,176 42,881 2,224 235,782 (202) 235,580




J

Financial Secoon

8

All Nippon Airways Co, Lid.

Yen (Millions)

Air Travel Hotel Other Intercompany
As of and for the year ended March 31, 2005 transportation services aperations businessas Tatal eliminations  Consolidated
Operating revenues ................. ¥ 961,968 ¥170,937 ¥55,454 ¥104,453 ¥1,292813 ¥ - ¥1,292,813
Intra-group sales and transfers....... 104,972 19,357 14,044 78,904 217,277 (217,277) -
Total ... 1,066,941 190,294 69,498 183,357 1,510,050 (217,277) 1,292,813
Operating expenses ...... e 993,900 187170 69,965 176,375 1,432,410 (217,371) 1,215,039
Operating income {loss) ............. ¥ 63,04 ¥ 3124 ¥ (467 ¥ 6987 ¥ 77680 ¥ 94 ¥ 77774
Air Travel Hotel Other Intercompany
transportation services operations businesses Total eliminations  Consolidated
Identifiable assets ................... ¥1,326,276 ¥45,732 ¥117,122 ¥180,856 ¥1,669,986 ¥(63,373) ¥1,606613
Depreciation and amortization ...... 61,703 1,134 4004 34805 70446 - 70448
Capital expenditure ................. 195,963 1,216 10,164 3152 210,495 (315 210180

14. Supplementary cash flow information

Reconciliation of the difference between cash stated in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statements of cash flows is as follows:

US. doflars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2007
a5, o e ¥172,958 ¥234,461 ¥158,204 $1,465,125
Time deposits with maturities of more than three months ................. (711} (903) (777 (6,023)
Marketable SECUMIES . et e 34 24645 5,730 288
Marketable securities with maturities of more than three months .......... (7) {15418) (2) (59)
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... .o i ¥172,274 ¥242,785 ¥163,155 $1,459,331
Significant non-cash transactions for the years ended March 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows;
U.S. dollars
Yen (Millions) {Thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2007
Conversion of convertible bonds:
Credited 10 COMMON SEOCK . . o e ¥- - ¥ 4733 $-
Credited to capital SUFRIUS ... - - 4,733 -
¥- - ¥ 0,466 5-
Issuance of new stack by execution of stock acquisition rights:
Credited 10 COMMON STOCK . . ..o e ¥- ¥4,208 ¥15,791 $-
Credited 1o capital Surplus ..o oo - 4,208 15,791 -
¥- ¥8418 ¥31,582 5-

The following are major components of assets and liabilities of ANA Real Estate Co, Ltd,, which has been excluded from consolidation
due to sale of all of interests by the Company, as well as a reconciliation of the difference between the sales prices of this subsidiary’s stock
and the proceeds from the sale of subsidiary's stock with changes in scope of consalidation.

U5, dollars
Yen {Millions) (Thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2007

Current assets ......... . ¥- ¥ 4872 ¥ - $-
FIxed @55005. . . oot - 37,948 - -
Goodwill ... e R - 275 - -
Current labilities ... o - (26,496) - -
Fixed HabiliTies ..o e e - (11,014 - -
Gain on sale of subsidiarys stock ... - 11,372 - -
Seles price of subsidiary's Stock ... - 16,557 - -
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary ... - (4,738) - -
Praceeds from sale of subsidiary’s stock with changes in scope of consolidation. .. ¥- ¥12219 ¥ - 5-




15. Impairment loss

The assets of the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are grouped by individual property in the case of hotel business
assets, rental real estate assets, assets expected to be sold and idle assets and by management accounting categories in the case of business
assets. Due to slumping performance in business assets and hotef business assets as well as falling prices of rental real estate assets and
assets expected to be sold, the net book values of assets whose profitability and market prices dropped notably were written down to the
recoverable amount and impairment losses of ¥10,809 million (591,563 thousand) and ¥20,451 million were recorded in the years ended

March 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively.

US. dellars

Yen (Miljons) (Thousands)

As of and for the year ended March 31, 2007

Application Location Category Imnpairment loss
Business assets 1 in Hokkaido Buildings ¥ 44 $ 373
Land 61 517
Tatal ¥ 105 $ 890
Assets expected (o be sold Aircraft ¥10,704 $90,673
Total ¥10,704 $90,673

Note: The recoverable amount of the assets was measured using the net realizable value based cn real estate appraisal or sales agreement, or using the value in use method with discount
rates of 3.5% 1o 11.7%.

As of and for the year ended March 31, 2006 Yen (Millions)

Application Location Categoary Impalrment loss
Hotel business assets 1in Kanto / 2 others Buildings and others ¥ 8232
Others 805
Tetal ¥ 5038
Rental real estate assets 1inKanto /5 others Land, buildings and others ¥ 7462
Buildings and others 3,154
Total ¥10616
Idle assets 2in Kanto / 5 others Land and others ¥ 778
Intangible fixed assets and others 19
Total ¥ 797

Note: The recoverable amount of the assets was measured using the net realizable value based on real estate appraisal o sales agreement, or using the value in use method with discount
rates of 3.5% to 10.6%.

Financial Section

&
Ry

16. Subsequent event

Based on the resolution of the Board of Directors’ meeting held {4) Transferee:

on April 13,2007, the Company entered into an agreement to
transfer all the shares and assets in 14 subsidiary companies relating
tc hotels owned and leased by the Company’s group (the "ANA
Group") companies and completed the transfer on June 1, 2007:
(1) Reascn for transfer:

To dispose of the ANA Group's owned and leased hotel assets

in line with its 2006-2009 Midterm Corporate Strategy,

as announced on January 31, 2006,
(2) Transferred companies and properties:

14 hotel subsidiary companies and 3 real estate properties
(3) Date of transfer;

June 1, 2007

Company name: Y.K, Shiroyarna Properties*

CEO: Mr. Tomoaki Yamada

Registered Address: Koto-ku, Tokyo, Japan

* Shiroyarna Properties is a Yugen Kaisha (Y.K} formed by a
fund managed by Morgan Stanley, and has no link in terms
of equity or personnel with the ANA Group.

(5) Profits from the deal {Estimated):
¥130.0 billion {51,107 million}

All Nigpon Airways Co, Ltd.




__ Report of Independent Auditors

-i’l ERNST& YOUNG SH’NN’HON # Certified Public Accountants ® Tel: 033503 1100

Hibiya Kokusai Bldg. Fax: 03 3503 1197
2-2-3, Uchisaiwai-cho

Chiyoda-ku, Tokvo, Japan 100-0011

C.P.O. Box 1196, Tokyo, Japan 100-8641

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
All Nippon Airways Co., Lid.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of All Nippon Airways Co., Lid,
and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in net assets, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended March 31, 2007, all expressed in yen. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management.  Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on cur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with aunditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
5 estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
3 presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
E In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of All Nippon Airways Co., Ltd. and consolidated
@2 subsidiaries at March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2007 in conformity
- with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
fj The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to
) the year ended March 31, 2007 are presented solely for convenience, Our audit also included
< the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has
g been made on the basis described in Note 3.
z
E

(Supplemental Information)

As described in Note 16 “Subsequent event”, based on the resolution of the Board of Directors’
meeting held on April 13, 2007, the Company entered into an agreement to transfer ail the
shares and assets in 14 subsidiary companies relating to hotels owned and leased by the
Company’s group companies and completed the transfer on June 1, 2007.

Gonck § Gpung SonPtidinn

Ernst & Young ShinNihon

June 25, 2007
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The ANA Group

(As of March 31, 2007}

Number of subsidiaries

Number of affiliates

The ANA Group

&

of which, of which, of which,
Operating segment Tota consolidated equity method Total equity method
Air Transportation 38 38 - 5 5
Travel Services g g - 1 1
Hotel Operations 16 16 - 3 2
Other Businesses 65 32 5 35 12
Total 128 95 5 44 20
Paid-in  Percentage
ANA and Principal Subsidiaries Revenues' Capital' Ownedby
and Affiliates Principal Businesses (Millions) (Millonsy  the Parent
Air Transportation: Transpertation Related
All Nippon Airways Co., Ltd, (ANA) Air transportation ¥1,289429  ¥160,001 Parent
Air Nippon Ca., Ltd. {ANK) Air transportation {mainly domestic mid/long-distance routes using 91,297 5400 100.0
narrow-baody aircraft)
Air Nippon Network Co,, Ltd. (AKX) Air transportation {mainly within Hokkaido and ltami arrival/departure 13,857 50 100.0
routes using turbo-prop aircraft)
Air Japan Co., Ltd. {AJX) Air transportation {mainly Asian resort routes) 11,644 50 100.0
Air Central Co., Ltd. (CRF) Alr transportation {mainly Nagoya arrival/departure routes using 7,555 300 86.7
turbo-prop aircraft)
Alr Next Co., Ltd. (NXA) Air transportation (mainly Fukuoka and Nagoya arrival/departure 5592 50 100.0
routes using narrow-body aircraft)
ANAE P Express Co, Ltd {AJV) Air cargo transportation 4,461 80 517
Air Transportation: Transportation Support Related
International Airport Utility Co, Ltd. Haneda Airport aircraft taxi/towing operations 13,315 100 50.0
ANA Catering Service Co, Lid. Preparation of in-flight meals 11,644 352 100.0
New Tokyo Airport Service Co, Ltd. Narita Airport aircraft taxi/towing operations 9948 &0 50.0
ANA Aircraft Maintenance Co, Ltd. Maintenance, repair, and improvement of aircraft and equipment 8,840 2433 987
Travel Services
ANA Sales Co, Ltd. Travel services (development, support, and sales of domestic and 198,299 1,000 975
international travel packages)
Hotel Operations’
ANA Hotel Tokyo Co,, Ltd. Hotel operations 16,542 40 0.0
Okinawa ANA Resort Ca, Ltd. Hotel cperations 6,284 2,600 100.0
Other Businesses
All Nippon Airways Trading Co., Ltd. Trading and retail (development of airport stores and other stores 144,140 360 395
and direct sales through ANA in-flight magazine and other methods)
ANA Information Systems Planning Co., Ltd.  System consulting and system integration services 20,375 53 100.0
Sky Building Service Co., Ltd. Contracting of building/facility maintenance, management, 12,745 80 448
and cleaning services
ANA Logistic Service Co, Ltd. Air cargo imports warehousing and impaort/export administration 8910 465 570
ANA Business Create Co, Ltd. Air ticket inspection/HR dispatch and introduction services 7519 200 60.0

Motes: 1. Figures for revenues and paid-in capital of each corpany are stated before intercormpany eliminations.
2. ANA transferred its hotel business outside the Group in June 2007,

All Nippon Airways Co, Ltd,




AMA Route System

ANA Route System

{As of June 8, 2007)

3

All Nippon Arways Co, Ltd,

Domestic Network
<Passengers> _

Number of routes: 130 T
Number of flights: 938 per day / I R

<Cargo>
Number of routes: 5
Number of flights: 8 per day
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<Passengers>

Number of routes: 38

Number of flights: 596 per week
{ANA Group total, excluding code-share flights)
<Cargo>

Number of routes: 20

Number of flights: 108 per week
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Investor Information
(As of March 31, 2007)

Date of Foundation
December 27,1952

Head Office

Shiodome City Center,

1-5-2 Higashi-Shimbashi,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-7133, Japan
TEL: 81-3-6735-1000

FAX: 81-3-6735-1005

URL: http/Awww.ana.cojp/

Transfer Agent
The Surmitomo Trust and Banking Co, Lid.
1-10, Nikko-cho, Fuchu, Tokyo 182-8701, Japan

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young ShinNihen

American Depositary Receipts
Ratio (ADR:ORD): 1:2

Exchange: OTC (Over-the-Counter)
Symbol; ALNPY

Investor Relations CUSIP: 016630303

TEL: 81-3-6735-1030 Depaositary:

FAX: 81-3-6735-1185 The Bank of New York

Offices 101 Barclay Street, 22 West, New York, NY 10286, US.A,
Japan TEL: 1-212-815-2042

U.S. Toll Free: 1-888-269-2377 (888-BNY-ADRS)

Sapporo, Tokyo, Nagoya, Osaka, Fukuoka, Ckinawa, and 3% offices in
URL: http:/fwww.adrbny.com

other cities
tinited Stares

. . i d
Los Angeles; New York; Washington, D.C; Chicago; San Francisco, Stock Price and Ratios (Consolidated)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Honolulu; Guam
Stock Price® {¥):
Europe High 489 509 403 364 380
London, Paris, Frankfurt, Dusseldorf, Hamburg, Zurich, Geneva, Low 392 EYal 312 191 202
Brussels, Moscow, Rome, Madrid PER (times):
Asia High 29.2 325 233 26 -
Beijing, Tianjin, Shenyang, Dalian, Qingdao, Shanghai, Xiamen, Low 234 205 181 ne -
Hangzhou, Guangzhou, Hong Kong, Seoul, Bangkok, Ho Chi Minh :”C?'E ?aih)F'OW 5
f H atio (times): =
City, Yangon, Kuala Lumpur, Singapore, Bombay High 79 89 68 63 174 é
Number of Employees Low 6.3 56 53 33 9.2 <
32,460 (Consolidated) PBR (iimes): £
. , High 24 29 3 37 48 z
Paid-in Capital Low 19 18 24 20 25
¥160,001 million
Net Income (Loss)
Number of Shares of Common Stock per Share (¥) 16.77 1564 17.26 1614 (i842)
Authorized: 3,900,000,000 shares Equity per Share (¥) 20442 17789 12831 9766 7957
lssued: 1,949,859 257 shares Cash Dividends
Number of Shareholders per Share (¥) 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 -

274,736

Stock Listings
Tokyo, Osaka, and London

Major Shareholders

Numberof  Percentage of w
shares held lotm Shafes 00 T s - R R -
{Thousands} inissue
Nagoya Railroad Co, Ltd. 71,982 365% e [’ 1| ol Albi-
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Lid. [trust account) 47341 243 50 . ab o PrelT ITe
Tokic Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co, Ltd. 43397 223 TR ER R PIEL
Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (trust account) 42,073 216 300
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co, Lid. 34,770 1.78
Nippon Life Insurance Company 30681 157 THe T T T T T B
All Nippon Arways Co, Lid. Employee Stock
Ownership Association 28,755 1.53 D (2967891011121 234 56769001121 2348676810121 23456,
Sumitamo Mitsui Banking Corporation 26,820 1.38 | . 2004 ' 2005 2006 . L
Mizuho Carporate Bank, Ltd 26,753 137
The Asahi Shimbun Company 24518 1.26
Total 378,090 19.39%

* Tokyo Stack Exchange

Stock Price

Stock Price Range ' R

All Nippon Airways Co., Lid
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